

ENROLLED HOUSE
BILL NO. 1436

By: Toure of the House

and

Smith of the Senate

An Act relating to duplicate sections; amending 10 O.S. 1991, Sections 1115.2, as renumbered by Section 199, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1995, and as last amended by Section 21, Chapter 353, O.S.L. 1996, and 1102, as renumbered by Section 199, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1995, and as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 305, O.S.L. 1996 (10 O.S. Supp. 1996, Sections 7003-5.4 and 7303-1.2), which relate to children; amending 38 O.S. 1991, Section 28, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 308, O.S.L. 1996 (38 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 28), which relates to jurors; amending 47 O.S. 1991, Sections 6-101, 6-103 and 6-105, as last amended by Sections 1, 2, and 4, Chapter 254, O.S.L. 1996, 156, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 326, O.S.L. 1996, 583, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 332, O.S.L. 1996 and 754, as last amended by Section 7, Chapter 309, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Sections 6-101, 6-103, 6-105, 156, 583 and 754), which relate to motor vehicles; amending 51 O.S. 1991, Section 24A.1, as amended by Section 41, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996 (51 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 24A.1), which relates to officers; amending Section 2, Chapter 257, O.S.L. 1992, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1996 (52 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 288.2), which relates to

oil and gas; amending 62 O.S. 1991, Sections 7.2 and 41.21, as last amended by Sections 6 and 9, Chapter 290, O.S.L. 1996 (62 O.S. Supp. 1996, Sections 7.2 and 41.21), which relate to public finance; amending 63 O.S. 1991, Section 2-101, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 306, O.S.L. 1996, and Section 3, Chapter 263, O.S.L. 1995, as amended by Section 6, Chapter 326, O.S.L. 1996 (63 O.S. Supp. 1996, Sections 2-101 and 3224), which relate to public health and safety; amending 68 O.S. 1991, Sections 1357, as last amended by Section 3, Chapter 342, O.S.L. 1996, and 2358, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 296, O.S.L. 1996 (68 O.S. Supp. 1996, Sections 1357 and 2358), which relate to revenue and taxation; amending 74 O.S. 1991, Sections 85.7 and 85.12, as last amended by Sections 4 and 5, Chapter 316, O.S.L. 1996, 840.8, as renumbered by Section 54, Chapter 242, O.S.L. 1994, and as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 327, O.S.L. 1996, 1306, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 253, O.S.L. 1996, 1316.2, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 355, O.S.L. 1996, and 1316.3, as last amended by Section 3, Chapter 355, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Sections 85.7, 85.12, 840-5.5, 1306, 1316.2 and 1316.3), which relate to state government; amending 85 O.S. 1991, Section 139, as last amended by Section 9, Chapter 363, O.S.L. 1996 (85 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 139), which relates to workers' compensation; and 22 O.S. 1991, Section 1105, as amended by Section 4, Chapter 297, O.S.L. 1995 (22 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1105), which relates to criminal procedure; merging and

consolidating duplicate sections; repealing 10 O.S. 1991, Section 1115.2, as renumbered by Section 199, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1995, and as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 212, O.S.L. 1996 (10 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7003-5.4), 10 O.S. 1991, Section 1102, as renumbered by Section 199, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1995, and as last amended by Section 19, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996 (10 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7303-1.2), 38 O.S. 1991, Section 28, as last amended by Section 17, Chapter 97, O.S.L. 1996 (38 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 28), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-101, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 203, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-101), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-103, as last amended by Section 38, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-103), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-105, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 203, O.S.L. 1996 and Section 39, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-105), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 156, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 130, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 156), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 583, as last amended by Section 8, Chapter 249, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 583), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 754, as last amended by Section 4, Chapter 199, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 754), 51 O.S. 1991, Section 24A.1, as amended by Section 1, Chapter 209, O.S.L. 1996 (51 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 24A.1), Section 2, Chapter 257, O.S.L. 1992, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 84, O.S.L. 1996 (52 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 288.2), 59 O.S. 1991, Section 567.3a, as last amended by

Section 2, Chapter 288, O.S.L. 1996 (59 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 567.3a), 62 O.S. 1991, Section 7.2, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 30, O.S.L. 1996 (62 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7.2), 62 O.S. 1991, Section 41.21, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 204, O.S.L. 1996 (62 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 41.21), 63 O.S. 1991, Section 2-101, as last amended by Section 9, Chapter 186, O.S.L. 1996 (63 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 2-101), Section 3, Chapter 263, O.S.L. 1995, as amended by Section 5, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1996 (63 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 3224), 68 O.S. 1991, Section 1357, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 289, O.S.L. 1996 (68 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1357), 68 O.S. 1991, Section 2358, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 216, O.S.L. 1996, and Section 1, Chapter 217, O.S.L. 1996 (68 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 2358), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 85.7, as last amended by Section 6, Chapter 288, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 85.7), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 85.12, as last amended by Section 46, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996, and Section 7, Chapter 288, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 85.12), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 840.8, as renumbered by Section 54, Chapter 242, O.S.L. 1994, and as last amended by Section 8, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 840-5.5), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1306, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 139, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1306), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1316.2, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 338, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1316.2), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1316.3, as last

amended by Section 3, Chapter 338, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1316.3), 85 O.S. 1991, Section 139, as last amended by Section 21, Chapter 290, O.S.L. 1996 (85 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 139), and 22 O.S. 1991, Section 1105, as amended by Section 8, Chapter 286, O.S.L. 1995 (22 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1105), which relate to duplicate sections; and declaring an emergency.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA:

SECTION 1. AMENDATORY 10 O.S. 1991, Section 1115.2, as renumbered by Section 199, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1995, and as last amended by Section 21, Chapter 353, O.S.L. 1996 (10 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7003-5.4), is amended to read as follows:

Section 7003-5.4 A. The court shall ensure that the following information accompanies any deprived child placed outside the child's home:

1. Demographic information;
2. Strengths, needs and general behavior of the child;
3. Circumstances which necessitated placement;
4. Type of custody and previous placement;
5. Pertinent family information including, but not limited to, the names of family members who are and who are not, by court order, allowed to visit the child and the child's relationship to the family which may affect placement;
6. Important life experiences and relationships which may affect the child's feelings, behavior, attitudes or adjustment;
7. Whether the child has third-party insurance coverage which may be available to the child;
8. Education history to include present grade placement, last school attended, and special strengths and weaknesses. The Department of Human Services shall also assist the foster parents in getting the foster child's school records and assistance in school admission;
9. Known or available medical history including, but not limited to:
 - a. allergies,
 - b. immunizations,
 - c. childhood diseases,
 - d. physical handicaps,
 - e. psycho-social information, and
 - f. the name of the child's last doctor, if known; and
10. Copies of policies and procedures of the placement agency which pertain to placement operations of the agency, and which may be necessary to properly inform the institution, foster parent or other custodian of the duties, rights and responsibilities of the custodian.

B. When the Department of Human Services places a child in out-of-home care, the Department shall provide the placement providers with sufficient medical information to enable the placement

providers to care for the child appropriately. Such medical information shall include, but not be limited to:

1. Any medical or psychological conditions;
2. Diseases, illnesses, accidents, allergies, and congenital defects; and
3. Immunization history.

C. 1. When the Department places a child in out-of-home care, the placement providers may request the Department to provide contagious or infectious screening examinations or tests on the child and provide the results to such placement providers.

2. The Department shall provide for the examinations or tests on the child in accordance with rules promulgated by the Department and based on the Centers for Disease Control guidelines for time and frequency of testing, and shall, for a child, regardless of age, in the Department's emergency or temporary custody, obtain the parental consent or, if parental consent cannot be obtained due to refusal or inability to locate, the Department shall ~~request an order from the district court authorizing~~ have the authority to give consent for such examinations or tests and the release of such results to the placement providers. Any parental consent ~~or judicial authorization~~ received by the Department, pursuant to the provisions of this section, shall also apply to any future examinations or tests and release of such results as deemed necessary by the Department upon the request of the placement providers. The Department has the authority to consent to the examinations or tests and the release of such test results for a child, regardless of age, in the Department's permanent custody.

3. The Department may also designate other persons who may request the performance of such examinations or tests on the child, including but not limited to Department employees, direct caregivers and physicians.

SECTION 2. AMENDATORY 10 O.S. 1991, Section 1102, as renumbered by Section 199, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1995, and as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 305, O.S.L. 1996 (10 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7303-1.2), is amended to read as follows:

Section 7303-1.2 A. 1. Upon the filing of a petition, or upon the assumption of custody pursuant to the provisions of Section 7303-1.1 of this title, the district court of the county in which a child:

- a. resides,
- b. is found, or
- c. is alleged to be or is found to be in need of supervision,

shall have jurisdiction of any child who is or is alleged to be in need of supervision and shall have jurisdiction of the parent, guardian, legal custodian, legal guardian or stepparent of said child, regardless of where the parent, guardian, legal custodian, legal guardian or stepparent is found; and shall have jurisdiction of any other adult person living in the home of such child. For any child who is or is alleged to be delinquent, the district court of the county where the cause of action arose shall have jurisdiction of the child and of the parent, guardian, legal custodian, legal guardian or stepparent of said child, regardless where the parent, guardian, legal custodian, legal guardian or stepparent is found; and shall have jurisdiction of any other adult person living in the home of such child.

2. When jurisdiction shall have been obtained over a child who is or is alleged to be in need of supervision, such may be retained until the child becomes eighteen (18) years of age and when jurisdiction shall have been obtained over a child who is or is alleged to be a delinquent, jurisdiction may be retained until the child becomes nineteen (19) years of age upon the court's own motion, motion by the district attorney or motion by the Department

of Juvenile Justice, as provided in subsection B of Section 7302-5.4 of this title.

3. For the convenience of the parties and in the interest of justice, a proceeding under the Oklahoma Juvenile Code, Section 7301-1.1 et seq. of this title, may be transferred to the district court in any other county.

4. Any arrest or detention under the Oklahoma Juvenile Code or any adjudication in a juvenile proceeding shall not be considered an arrest, detention or conviction for purposes of employment, civil rights, or any statute, regulation, license, questionnaire, application, or any other public or private purposes, unless otherwise provided by law.

B. The district court in which a petition is filed or the district court in which custody has been assumed pursuant to the provisions of Section 7303-1.1 of this title may retain jurisdiction of a delinquent child in such proceeding notwithstanding the fact that the child is subject to the jurisdiction of another district court within the state. Any adjudication and disposition made by the court in which said petition is filed shall control over prior orders in regard to the child.

C. The district court in which a petition is filed which alleges that a child is in need of supervision can issue any temporary order or grant any interlocutory relief authorized by this Code notwithstanding the fact that another district court within the state has jurisdiction of the child.

D. If the district court in which a petition is filed pursuant to either subsection B or subsection C of this section sustains the petition, the district court shall have the jurisdiction to make a final determination on the juvenile petition or to transfer the proceedings to a court having prior jurisdiction over the child. Where the other proceeding is pending in the same judicial district in which the juvenile petition is filed, the chief judge of the judicial district shall determine if the proceedings shall be consolidated and, if consolidated, which judge shall try the issues when the judges to whom the cases have been assigned are unable to agree on the procedure that should be followed.

E. 1. A municipality may enter into an interlocal cooperation agreement with the district court pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Sections 1001 through 1008 of Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, to assume jurisdiction of cases involving children under eighteen (18) years of age charged with violating municipal ordinances relating to illegal possession of firearms, vandalism, shoplifting, trespassing, assault, battery, assault and battery, truancy, curfews, possession of low-point beer as defined in Section 163.2 of Title 37 of the Oklahoma Statutes, possession of alcoholic beverages as defined in Section 506 of Title 37 of the Oklahoma Statutes, disorderly conduct, public intoxication and failure to appear for a court appearance or comply with a court order and any other municipal ordinances as agreed by the district court, the district attorney and the municipality. For the purposes of this subsection, "district court" shall mean the district court judicial district or districts in which the contracting municipality is situated. The chief juvenile judge of the district court judicial district is hereby authorized to enter into the interlocal cooperation agreement as provided for in this section for and on behalf of said judicial district if the judge determines that the agreement is constitutional and complies with state and federal law. Provided, if there is no chief juvenile judge in the judicial district, then the presiding judge of the judicial administrative district that includes the contracting judicial district may enter into the agreement for and on behalf of said judicial district if the judge determines that the agreement is constitutional and complies with state and federal law.

2. A child under eighteen (18) years of age who is taken into custody for the alleged violation of a municipal ordinance relating to truancy may be held pursuant to Section 10-109 of Title 70 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

3. A child under eighteen (18) years of age who is taken into custody for the alleged violation of a municipal ordinance relating to curfews may be held temporarily under the custodial care of a peace officer or other person employed by a police department only until the child's parent, legal guardian, legal custodian, attorney or other responsible adult assumes custody or, if such a person cannot be located within a reasonable time of the taking of the child into custody or if such a person refuses to assume custody, until temporary shelter is found for the child. In no event shall the child be placed in a jail, lockup, or detention facility. The temporary custody provided for by this paragraph shall be utilized as a means of returning the child to the child's home or other place of shelter.

4. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Code, a child less than eighteen (18) years of age, who is taken into custody for the alleged violation of a municipal ordinance relating to one or more of the offenses listed in paragraph 1 of this subsection other than truancy or curfew violations, and who can be prosecuted in municipal court for such offense pursuant to jurisdiction assumed by the municipal court pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 1 of this subsection, may be temporarily detained by the municipality in a municipal juvenile facility, as defined by this paragraph, but only pursuant to the following conditions:

- a. the municipality shall immediately take all reasonable steps to attempt to locate the child's parent, legal guardian, legal custodian, attorney or another responsible adult and determine if said parent, legal guardian, legal custodian, attorney or other responsible adult is willing to appear at the municipal juvenile facility and assume personal custody of the child upon the child's release from such facility,
- b. the child shall be released to the personal custody of the child's parent, legal guardian, legal custodian, attorney or other responsible adult as soon as practicable and upon the written promise of such person to return the child to municipal court to answer the municipal charges on the date and at the time set by the municipal court and to assume responsibility for costs for damages by the child if the child causes damages while committing any acts in violation of municipal ordinances listed in this section after being released. Municipalities may enact ordinances providing penalties for failure to comply with the written promise and for refusal to assume custody of a child in a timely manner,
- c. the child shall be detained in the municipal juvenile facility for no longer than twenty-four (24) hours; provided, if the child's parent, legal guardian, legal custodian, attorney or other responsible adult fails to appear at the municipal juvenile facility and assume personal custody of the child within said twenty-four-hour period, then custody or release of the child shall be determined pursuant to the provisions of Section 7303-1.1 of this title,
- d. the child shall be provided with adequate fresh drinking water,
- e. the child shall be provided with adequate food not less than three times in a twenty-four-hour period,

- f. the child shall be provided with adequate bathroom facilities and bedding, and
- g. the child shall be provided with any necessary medical care and treatment.

Prior to the temporary detention of any child pursuant to the authority of this subsection, the municipal juvenile facility shall be certified by the Office of Juvenile Affairs pursuant to the applicable certification standards set by the Board of Juvenile Affairs, and each member of the staff of the municipal juvenile facility shall have satisfactorily completed a training program provided or approved by the Department of Juvenile Justice. In furtherance of this subsection, the Office of Juvenile Affairs is directed to and shall establish standards for the certification of municipal juvenile facilities, with said standards to include, but not be limited to, the conditions set forth in subparagraphs a through g, inclusive, of this paragraph, and the Department of Juvenile Justice is directed to and shall provide or approve an appropriate training program for staff members of such facilities. In lieu of operating a municipal juvenile facility with trained municipal employees, the municipality may contract with an independent public or private facility properly certified by the Office of Juvenile Affairs for performance of the detention services authorized by the provisions of this paragraph. For the purposes of this section, a "municipal juvenile facility" shall mean a secure facility which is entirely separate from any jail, adult lockup, or other adult facility, or is spatially separate if contained inside any jail, adult lockup, or other adult facility which is certified by the Office of Juvenile Affairs for use for the temporary detention of juveniles as authorized by the provisions of this paragraph. The provisions of this paragraph shall not restrict or limit the use of municipal juvenile facilities for detention of juveniles who are detained pursuant to other provisions of law. In no event shall a juvenile be held in an adult facility that does not meet the definition of a municipal juvenile facility.

5. Pursuant to an interlocal cooperation agreement between a municipality and the district court, as authorized by the provisions of paragraph 1 of this subsection, a child less than eighteen (18) years of age may be charged, prosecuted and, if convicted, fined for violating a municipal ordinance relating to one or more of the offenses listed in paragraph 1 of this subsection; provided that the maximum fine which may be imposed shall not exceed the maximum fine authorized by law. When assessing punishment, the court also may require appropriate community service work, not to exceed ninety (90) hours, in lieu of a fine if the product of multiplying the number of hours of community service work by the prevailing minimum wage does not result in a number which exceeds the maximum fine authorized by law, or restitution, or both community service work and restitution. In addition, during any calendar year that any child:

- a. fails to appear for a court date on more than one occasion,
- b. is convicted of two or more of the offenses listed in paragraph 1 of this subsection, which offenses occurred on different days, or
- c. fails to pay any fine or cost properly assessed by a municipal court,

and after the expiration of ninety (90) days, the court clerk shall mail notice of such occurrence to the Department of Public Safety, which department shall thereafter suspend or deny driving privileges for such child for six (6) months. The suspension may be modified as provided in Section 6-107.2 of Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes. In addition, the court may require the child to receive counseling or other community-based services, as necessary.

If a child is prosecuted for an offense in a municipal court, the child shall not be prosecuted for the offense in the district court. The municipal court may also impose costs as authorized by law.

6. Any fines and costs properly assessed against any child and which remain unpaid after three (3) months may be assessed by the municipal judge against the child's parent, parents, legal guardian or legal custodian and collected and paid as provided for in Section 27-122 of Title 11 of the Oklahoma Statutes. Provided however, prior to such latter assessment, the court clerk shall give such child's parent, parents, legal guardian or legal custodian notice by certified mail to their place of residence or personal service of such action proposed to be taken.

7. All municipal arrest records, prosecution records, court records, and court proceedings for cases involving children less than eighteen (18) years of age charged with violating municipal ordinances relating to one or more of the offenses listed in paragraph 1 of this subsection shall be kept confidential and shall not be open to public inspection except by order of the municipal court or as otherwise provided by Article VII of this Code and Section 620.6 of this title.

F. Funds generated from fines paid pursuant to an interlocal cooperation agreement between a municipality and the district court pursuant to the provisions of subsection E of this section shall be earmarked and used by the municipality only for the following purposes:

1. To fund local programs which address problems of juvenile crime;
2. To fund the costs of prosecutions authorized pursuant to the provisions of subsection E of this section;
3. To fund the costs of detention authorized pursuant to the provisions of subsection E of this section; ~~and~~
4. To fund administrative costs related to local programs that address problems of juvenile crime or related to the prosecution, detention, or punishment authorized pursuant to the provisions of subsection E of this section; and
5. To fund the costs of community intervention centers authorized pursuant to Section 7302-3.5 of this title.

Such earmarked funds shall not be used by the municipality for any purpose other than the purposes set forth in paragraphs 1 through 4 5 of this subsection.

SECTION 3. AMENDATORY 38 O.S. 1991, Section 28, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 308, O.S.L. 1996 (38 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 28), is amended to read as follows:

Section 28. A. All citizens of the United States, residing in this state, having the qualifications of electors of this state, who are of sound mind and discretion and of good moral character are competent jurors to serve on all grand and petit juries within their counties; provided, that persons over seventy (70) years of age and persons who have served as a grand or petit juror during the last two (2) immediately preceding calendar years shall not be compelled to serve as jurors in this state and the court may excuse or discharge any juror drawn and summoned as a grand or petit juror if jury service would result in substantial hardship to the prospective juror.

B. Persons who are not qualified to serve as jurors are:

1. Justices of the Supreme Court or the Court of Civil Appeals;
2. Judges of the Court of Criminal Appeals or the district court;
3. Sheriffs or deputy sheriffs;
4. Jailers or law enforcement officers, state or federal, having custody of prisoners;
5. Licensed attorneys engaged in the practice of law;

6. Persons who have been convicted of any felony or who have served a term of imprisonment in any penitentiary, state or federal, for the commission of a felony; provided, any such citizen convicted, who has been fully restored to his or her civil rights, shall be eligible to serve as a juror; and

7. Legislators during session of the Legislature or involved in state business.

SECTION 4. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-101, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 254, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-101), is amended to read as follows:

Section 6-101. A. No person, except those hereinafter expressly exempted in Section 6-102 of this title, shall operate any motor vehicle upon a highway in this state unless the person has a valid Oklahoma driver license for the class of vehicle being operated under the provisions of this title. No person shall be permitted to possess more than one valid license at any time.

B. 1. No person shall operate a Class A commercial motor vehicle unless the person is eighteen (18) years of age or older and holds a valid Class A commercial license, except as provided in paragraph 5 of this subsection. Any person holding a valid Class A commercial license shall be permitted to operate motor vehicles in Classes A, B, C, and D, except as provided for in paragraph 4 of this subsection~~†~~.

2. No person shall operate a Class B commercial motor vehicle unless the person is eighteen (18) years of age or older and holds a valid Class B commercial license. Any person holding a valid Class B commercial license shall be permitted to operate motor vehicles in Classes B, C, and D, except as provided for in paragraph 4 of this subsection~~†~~.

3. No person shall operate a Class C commercial motor vehicle unless the person is eighteen (18) years of age or older and holds a valid Class C commercial license. Any person holding a valid Class C commercial license shall be permitted to operate motor vehicles in Classes C and D, except as provided for in paragraph 4 of this subsection~~†~~.

4. No person under twenty-one (21) years of age shall be licensed to operate any motor vehicle which is required to be placarded for hazardous materials pursuant to 49 C.F.R., Part 172, subpart F; provided, the Department of Public Safety shall provide by rule promulgated pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act, Section 250 et seq. of Title 75 of the Oklahoma Statutes, that a person under twenty-one (21) years of age may be licensed to operate a farm vehicle or, if such person is the operator of or employed by the operator of a farm retail outlet, any vehicle which is required to be placarded for hazardous materials pursuant to 49 C.F.R., Part 172, subpart F, if such licensure will not result in the loss of federal funds to this state pursuant to federal law or regulation~~†~~ and.

5. A person at least seventeen (17) years of age who successfully completes all examinations required by law may be issued by the Department:

- a. a restricted Class A commercial license which shall grant to the licensee the privilege to operate a Class A or Class B commercial motor vehicle for harvest purposes or a Class D motor vehicle, or
- b. a restricted Class B commercial license which shall grant to the licensee the privilege to operate a Class B commercial motor vehicle for harvest purposes or a Class D motor vehicle.

6. No person shall operate a Class D motor vehicle unless the person is sixteen (16) years of age or older and holds a valid Class D license, except as provided for in Section 6-102 or 6-105 of this

title. Any person holding a valid Class D license shall be permitted to operate motor vehicles in Class D only.

C. Any person issued a driver license pursuant to this section may exercise the privilege thereby granted upon all streets and highways in this state.

D. No person shall operate a motorcycle, motor-driven cycle, or a motorized bicycle without having a valid Class A, B, C, or D license with a motorcycle endorsement. Except as otherwise provided by law, any new applicant for an original driver license shall be required to successfully complete a written examination, vision examination, and driving examination for a motorcycle as prescribed by the Department of Public Safety to be eligible for a motorcycle endorsement thereon.

E. Except as otherwise provided by law, any person who lawfully possesses a valid Oklahoma driver license which is eligible for renewal shall be required to successfully complete a written examination, vision examination, and driving examination for a motorcycle as prescribed by the Department to be eligible for a motorcycle endorsement; provided, however, the Department may waive all such examinations until July 1, 2000, upon satisfactory proof that the applicant has regularly operated a motorcycle, motor-driven cycle, or motorized bicycle for a minimum of two (2) years immediately preceding the application.

F. 1. Any person eighteen (18) years of age or older may apply for a restricted Class A, B, or C commercial license. The Department, after the applicant has passed all parts of the examination for and has been issued a Class D license and has successfully passed all parts of the examination for a Class A, B, or C commercial license other than the driving ~~test~~ examination, may issue to the applicant a restricted driver license which shall entitle the applicant having immediate possession of the license ~~in his or her possession~~ to operate a Class A, B, or C commercial motor vehicle upon the public highways solely for the purpose of behind-the-wheel training in accordance with rules promulgated by the Department.

2. This restricted driver license shall be issued for ~~the same period as all other licenses~~ a period as determined by federal regulation and shall be nonrenewable; provided, such restricted license may be suspended, revoked, canceled, or denied at the discretion of the Department for violation of the restrictions, for failing to give the required or correct information on the application, or for violation of any traffic laws of this state pertaining to the operation of a motor vehicle. Except as otherwise provided, the lawful possessor of a restricted license who has been issued a restricted license for a minimum of thirty (30) days may have the restriction requiring an accompanying driver removed by satisfactorily completing a driver's examination; provided, the removal of a restriction shall not authorize the operation of a Class A, B, or C commercial motor vehicle if such operation is otherwise prohibited by law. The Department shall cause an examination to be conducted not more than three times during the first six (6) months after the date of issuance of the restricted license and not more than one time every three (3) months thereafter upon request of the lawful possessor thereof.

G. 1. The fee charged for ~~a successful examination~~ an approved application for an original Oklahoma driver license or an approved application for the addition of an endorsement to a current valid Oklahoma driver license shall be assessed in accordance with the following schedule:

Class A Commercial License	\$25.00
Class B Commercial License	\$15.00
Class C Commercial License	\$15.00
Class D License	\$ 4.00

Motorcycle Examination \$ 4.00

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1104 of this title, all monies collected from the ~~examination~~ fees charged for Class A, B, and C commercial licenses pursuant to the provisions of this subsection shall be deposited in the General Revenue Fund of this state.

H. The fee charged for an ~~examination other than a successful~~ any failed examination shall be Four Dollars (\$4.00) for any license classification. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1104 of this title, all monies collected from such examination fees pursuant to the provisions of this subsection shall be deposited in the General Revenue Fund of the state.

I. In addition to any fee charged ~~for a successful examination~~ pursuant to the provisions of subsection G of this section, the fee charged for the issuance or renewal of an Oklahoma license shall be in accordance with the following schedule:

Class A Commercial License	\$35.00
Class B Commercial License	\$35.00
Class C Commercial License	\$25.00
Class D License	\$15.00

J. All original and renewal driver licenses shall expire four (4) years from the last day of the month in which the license was issued.

K. Any person sixty-two (62) years of age or older during the calendar year of issuance or renewal of a Class D license or motorcycle endorsement shall be charged the following prorated fee:

Age 62	\$11.25
Age 63	\$ 7.50
Age 64	\$ 3.75
Age 65	-0-

L. The Department of Public Safety and the Oklahoma Tax Commission are authorized to promulgate rules for the issuance and renewal of driver licenses authorized pursuant to the provisions of Sections 6-101 through 6-309 of this title. Applications, upon forms approved by the Department of Public Safety, for such licenses shall be handled by the motor license agents; provided, the Department of Public Safety is authorized to assume these duties in any county of this state. Each motor license agent accepting applications for driver licenses shall receive Two Dollars (\$2.00) to be deducted from the total collected for each license or renewal application accepted. The two-dollar fee received by the motor license agent shall be used for operating expenses.

M. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1994, and for each fiscal year thereafter, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1104 of this title and subsection L of this section and except as provided in subsection G of this section, the first Sixty Thousand Dollars (\$60,000.00) of all monies collected pursuant to this section shall be paid by the Oklahoma Tax Commission to the State Treasurer to be deposited in the General Revenue Fund of the State Treasury.

N. The next Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$500,000.00) of monies collected pursuant to this section shall be paid by the Oklahoma Tax Commission to the State Treasurer to be deposited each fiscal year under the provisions of this section to the credit of the Department of Public Safety Revolving Fund for the purpose of the Statewide Law Enforcement Communications System. All other monies collected in excess of Five Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars (\$560,000.00) each fiscal year shall be apportioned as provided in Section 1104 of this title, except as provided in subsection L of this section.

O. If funds are appropriated for purposes specified by this subsection, the Department of Public Safety may implement a procedure whereby images displayed on licenses issued pursuant to

the provisions of Sections 6-101 through 6-309 of this title can be maintained by the Department to create photographs which may be used only by a law enforcement agency for purposes of criminal investigations, missing person investigations, or any law enforcement purpose which is deemed necessary by the Commissioner of Public Safety. The computer system acquired for this purpose must conform to industry standards for interoperability and open architecture. The Department of Public Safety may promulgate rules to implement the provisions of this subsection.

SECTION 5. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-103, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 254, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-103), is amended to read as follows:

Section 6-103. A. Except as otherwise provided by law, the Department of Public Safety shall not issue a driver's license to:

1. Any person who is under ~~sixteen (16)~~ eighteen (18) years of age, except that the Department may issue a Class D license to any person who:

a. is sixteen (16) years of age before January 1, 1997, or

b. attains sixteen (16) years of age on or after January 1, 1997, and meets the requirements of Section 6-107.3 of this title;

2. Any unemancipated person who is sixteen (16) or seventeen (17) years of age and whose custodial parent or guardian objects to the issuance of a license or permit by filing an objection pursuant to Section ~~3~~ 6-103.1 of this ~~act~~ title;

3. Any person whose driving privilege has been suspended, revoked, canceled or denied in this state or any other state until the driving privilege has been reinstated by the state withdrawing the privilege;

4. Any person whose driving privilege has been revoked for a period of three (3) years pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 4 of Section 6-205.1 of this title, until the person has furnished a report from a licensed physician that the person has been free from alcohol or drug abuse for at least the preceding twelve-month period;

5. Any person who is required by Section 6-101 et seq. of this title to take an examination, unless the person shall have successfully passed the examination;

6. Any person who is required under the laws of this state to deposit proof of financial responsibility and who has not deposited such proof;

7. Any person who is physically deformed or who is afflicted with any mental disease or physical condition that would impair the driving ability of the person or when the Commissioner of Public Safety, from information concerning the person or from the records and reports on file in the Department of Public Safety, determines that the operation of a motor vehicle by such person on the highways would be inimical to public safety or welfare;

8. Any person who is a nonresident, as defined in Section 1-137 of this title;

9. Any alien unless such person presents valid documentation of identity issued pursuant to the laws of the United States; or

10. Any person who possesses a valid license to operate a motor vehicle issued by another state until the other state license has been surrendered.

B. Any applicant who is denied a license under the provisions of subsection A of this section shall have the right to an appeal as provided in Section 6-211 of this title.

SECTION 6. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-105, as last amended by Section 4, Chapter 254, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-105), is amended to read as follows:

Section 6-105. A. Unless a custodial parent or guardian has filed an objection to licensure pursuant to Section ~~3~~ 6-103.1 of this ~~act~~ title, any person under sixteen (16) years of age may be permitted to operate a motor vehicle as follows: Any secondary school student who is at least fifteen and one-half (15 1/2) years of age and ~~is regularly enrolled and:~~

1. Is currently receiving instruction in or has satisfactorily successfully completed:

a. a prescribed secondary school driver education course, as defined by Section provided for in Sections 19-113 et seq. through 19-121 of Title 70 of the Oklahoma Statutes, or

b. a driver education course, certified by the Department of Public Safety, from a parochial, private, or other nonpublic secondary school, or

c. a commercial driver training course, as defined by Sections 801 through 808 of this title; or

2. Whose parent or legal guardian has certified to the Department by sworn affidavit that the person will receive a minimum of twenty-five (25) hours of actual behind-the-wheel training from a licensed driver who is at least eighteen (18) years of age and who has been properly licensed to operate a Class D motor vehicle for a minimum of two (2) years,

may apply for a restricted Class D license. The Department of Public Safety, after the ~~applicant~~ person has successfully passed all parts of the examination other than the driving ~~test~~ examination and is in compliance with Section 6-107.3 of this title, ~~may~~ shall issue to the ~~applicant~~ person a restricted Class D license which shall ~~entitle grant to the applicant person,~~ while having such license in his or her possession, the privilege to operate a Class D motor vehicle upon the public highways while accompanied by a licensed driver who is at least eighteen (18) years of age or older and who is actually occupying a seat beside the driver restricted licensee. This restricted ~~driver's Class D~~ license shall be issued for the same period as all other ~~driver's driver~~ licenses; provided,
a. The restricted Class D license may be suspended or canceled at the discretion of the Department for violation of restrictions, for failing to give the required or correct information on the application or for violation of any traffic laws of this state pertaining to the operation of a motor vehicle. The holder of a A restricted license licensee who is at least sixteen (16) years of age who has been issued a restricted Class D license for a minimum of thirty (30) days may have the restriction requiring an accompanying licensed driver removed by satisfactorily completing a driver's driving examination. The Department shall cause an examination to be conducted not more than three times during the first six (6) months after date of eligibility of the holder of the restricted license licensee to have the restriction removed and not more than one time every three (3) months thereafter upon request of the holder thereof.

B. Unless Any person fourteen (14) years of age or older may apply for a restricted Class D license with a motorcycle restriction. After the person has successfully passed all parts of the motorcycle examination other than the driving examination, has met all requirements provided for in the rules of the Department, is in compliance with Section 6-107.3 of this title, and unless a custodial parent or guardian has filed an objection pursuant to Section ~~3~~ 6-103.1 of this ~~act~~ title, the Department ~~may~~ shall issue to the person a restricted Class D license with a motorcycle restriction to any unemancipated person who is fourteen (14), fifteen (15), sixteen (16), or seventeen (17) years of age, or to any emancipated person who is fourteen (14) years of age or older, if the applicant has met all of the requirements of the rules of the

~~Department except the driving test on the motor-driven cycle. The license shall enable the person to gain knowledge and experience in handling and operation of such vehicle. The Department may issue a license restricting which shall grant to the person, while having the license in his or her immediate possession, the privilege to operate a motor-driven cycle with:~~

- ~~1. With a piston displacement not to exceed one hundred twenty-five (125) cubic centimeters, between; and~~
- ~~2. Between the hours of 4:30 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. only, while; and~~
- ~~3. While wearing approved protective headgear, while; and~~
- ~~4. While accompanied by and receiving instruction from a parent, legal guardian or any person who is at least twenty-one (21) years of age or older and who is properly licensed pursuant to the laws of this state to operate a Class A, B, C, or D motor vehicle with a motorcycle endorsement, and who has visual contact with the operator restricted licensee.~~

~~The holder of any such restricted license licensee may apply on or after thirty (30) days from date of issuance of the restricted Class D license with a motorcycle restriction to have the restriction of being accompanied by a licensed driver removed by successfully completing the driving portion of a test an examination.~~

C. The Department may in its discretion issue a special permit to any person who has attained the age of fourteen (14) years, authorizing such person to operate farm vehicles between the farm and the market to haul commodities grown on such farm; provided, that such special permit shall be temporary and shall expire not more than thirty (30) days after the issuance thereof. Special permits shall be issued only to farm residents and shall be issued only during the time of the harvest of the principal crops grown on such farm. Provided, however, the Department shall not issue a special permit pursuant to this subsection until the Department is fully satisfied after the examination of the application, and other evidence furnished in support thereof, that the person is physically and mentally developed to such a degree that the operation of a motor vehicle by the person would not be inimical to public safety.

D. The Department may issue an instructor's permit to any qualified secondary school driver education instructor as defined by the Oklahoma State Board of Education Rules and Regulations for Oklahoma High School Driver and Traffic Safety Education, any driver education instructor, certified by the Department of Public Safety, of a parochial, private, or other nonpublic secondary school upon a proper application to the State Board of Education or the Department of Public Safety in the case of secondary schools that are not regulated by the State Board of Education or a commercial driver training course instructor as provided for in Sections 801 through 808 of this title. The Department shall promulgate rules for the issuance of such permits. Any instructor as defined in this subsection who has been issued a permit may instruct any person who is at least fifteen and one-half (15 1/2) years of age or who is at least fifteen (15) years of age and of secondary school sophomore or higher educational standing while regularly enrolled and certified by the instructor as a student taking a prescribed course of secondary school driver education, a driver education course, certified by the Department of Public Safety, from a parochial, private, or other nonpublic secondary school or a commercial driver training course as defined by Sections 801 through 808 of this title to operate a motor vehicle while accompanied by and receiving instruction from the instructor who is actually occupying a seat beside the driver.

E. In addition to the licenses to operate motor vehicles, the Department may issue cards for purposes of identification only. The identification cards shall be issued and renewed in the same manner

as ~~driver's~~ driver licenses in this state and for a fee of Seven Dollars (\$7.00) to any resident of this state. The application for an identification card by any person under the age of sixteen (16) shall be signed and verified by the parent or legal guardian before a person authorized to administer oaths. Such cards shall be valid for a period of four (4) years from the month of issuance; however, the identification cards issued to persons sixty-five (65) years of age or older shall be valid indefinitely from the month of issuance, and no person sixty-five (65) years of age or older shall be charged a fee for an identification card. The fees derived pursuant to this section shall be apportioned as provided in Section 1104 of this title.

The Oklahoma Tax Commission is hereby authorized to reimburse, from funds available to that agency, each motor license agent issuing an identification card to a person sixty-five (65) years of age or older, an amount not to exceed One Dollar (\$1.00) for each card so issued. The Oklahoma Tax Commission shall develop procedures for claims for reimbursement.

~~F. The Department may issue a temporary photo license bearing appropriate restrictions to any person who has been authorized a limited or modified license for a specified period of time. The Department shall collect a fee of Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00) for such temporary photo license, in addition to any other fee, which shall be deposited in the General Revenue Fund. The Department or a motor license agent, upon receipt of authorization from the Department, upon issuance of a temporary photo license, shall additionally collect a fee of Five Dollars (\$5.00), to be allocated in the same manner as for a replacement license.~~

SECTION 7. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 1991, Section 156, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 326, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 156), is amended to read as follows:

Section 156. A. Unless otherwise provided for by law, no state board, commission, department, institution, official, or employee, except the Department of Public Safety, the Department of Human Services, the Department of Wildlife Conservation, the Department of Corrections, the State Department of Education, the Oklahoma School of Science and Mathematics, the Oklahoma State Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control, the Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigation, the Transportation Commission, the Department of Agriculture, the State Department of Health, the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services, the J.D. McCarty Center for Children with Developmental Disabilities, the Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department, the Oklahoma Conservation Commission, the Oklahoma Water Resources Board and, the Department of Mines, the Office of Juvenile Affairs, and the Oklahoma Supreme Court shall purchase any passenger automobile or bus with public funds.

B. The Oklahoma School for the Deaf at Sulphur, the Oklahoma School for the Blind at Muskogee, and any state institution of higher education may purchase, own, or keep if now owned, or acquire by lease or gift, and use and maintain such station wagons, automobiles, trucks, or buses as are reasonably necessary for the implementation of the educational programs of said institutions. No bus operated, owned, or used by such educational institutions shall be permitted to carry any person other than students, faculty members, employees, or volunteers of such institutions. The provisions of this section shall not be construed to prohibit the operation of intracampus buses or buses routed directly between portions of the campus of any institution not adjacent to each other, nor to prohibit the collection of fares from such students, faculty members, or employees of such institutions, sufficient in amount to cover the reasonable cost of such transportation.

C. The J.D. McCarty Center for Children with Developmental Disabilities, the Oklahoma Department of Libraries, the Oklahoma

Department of Veterans Affairs, and the Oklahoma Veterans Centers may own and maintain such passenger vehicles as those institutions have acquired prior to May 1, 1981.

D. The use of station wagons, automobiles, and buses, other than as provided for in this section, shall be permitted only upon written request for such use by heads of departments of the institution, approved in writing by the president of said institution or by some administrative official of said institution authorized by the president to grant said approval. Such use shall be permitted only for official institutional business or activities connected therewith. Such use shall be subject to the provisions of Sections 156.1 and 159.7 of this title forbidding personal use of such vehicles, and to the penalties therein declared.

E. Any person convicted of violating the provisions of this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished by fine or imprisonment, or both, as provided for in Section 156.1 of this title.

F. For the purpose of this section and Section 156.3 of this title, a station wagon is classified as a passenger automobile and may not be purchased solely for the use of transporting property. Such vehicles shall include, but not be limited to, all vehicles which have no separate luggage compartment or trunk but which do not have open beds, whether the same are called station wagons, vans, suburbans, town and country, blazers, or any other names. All state boards, commissions, departments, and institutions may own and maintain station wagons purchased solely for the purpose of transporting property if acquired prior to July 1, 1985.

G. The provisions of this section and Section 156.1 of this title shall not apply to public officials who are statewide elected commissioners.

SECTION 8. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 1991, Section 583, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 332, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 583), is amended to read as follows:

Section 583. A. 1. It shall be unlawful and constitute a misdemeanor for any person, firm, association, corporation, or trust to engage in business as, or serve in the capacity of, or act as a used motor vehicle dealer, used motor vehicle ~~salesman~~ salesperson, wholesale used motor vehicle dealer, or a manufactured home dealer in this state without first obtaining a license therefor as provided in this section.

2. Any person, firm, association, corporation, or trust engaging, acting, or serving in the capacity of a used motor vehicle dealer and/or a used motor vehicle ~~salesman~~ salesperson, or a manufactured home dealer, or having more than one place where the business of a used motor vehicle dealer or a manufactured home dealer is carried on or conducted shall be required to obtain and hold a current license for each thereof in which ~~he, it or they shall engage~~ engaged. A used motor vehicle dealer's license shall authorize one person to sell without a ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license in the event such person shall be the owner of a proprietorship, or the person designated as principal in the dealer's franchise or the managing officer or one partner if no principal person is named in the franchise. A ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license may not be issued under a wholesale used motor vehicle dealer's license.

3. Any person, firm, association, corporation, or trust violating the provisions of this section shall, upon conviction, be fined not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00). A second or subsequent conviction shall be punished by a fine not to exceed One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00); provided that each day such unlicensed person violates this section shall constitute a separate offense, and any vehicle involved in a violation of this subsection shall be considered a separate offense.

B. 1. Applications for licenses required to be obtained under provisions of this act, Section 581 et seq. of this title, which creates the Oklahoma Used Motor Vehicle and Parts Commission shall be verified by the oath or affirmation of the applicant and shall be on forms prescribed by the Commission and furnished to the applicants, and shall contain such information as the Commission deems necessary to enable it to fully determine the qualifications and eligibility of the several applicants to receive the license or licenses applied for. The Commission shall require in the application, or otherwise, information relating to:

- a. the applicant's financial standing,
- b. the applicant's business integrity,
- c. whether the applicant has an established place of business and is engaged in the pursuit, avocation, or business for which a license, or licenses, is applied for,
- d. whether the applicant is able to properly conduct the business for which a license, or licenses, is applied for, and
- e. such other pertinent information consistent with the safeguarding of the public interest and the public welfare.

2. All applications for license or licenses shall be accompanied by the appropriate fee or fees in accordance with the schedule hereinafter provided. In the event any application is denied and the license applied for is not issued, the entire license fee shall be returned to the applicant.

3. All bonds and licenses issued under the provisions of this act shall expire on December 31, following the date of issue and shall be nontransferable. All applications for renewal of dealers' licenses should be submitted by November 1 of each year, and licenses shall be issued by January 10. If applications have not been made for renewal of licenses, such licenses shall expire on December 31 and it shall be illegal for any person to represent himself or herself and act as a dealer thereafter. Tag agents shall be notified not to accept dealers' titles until such time as licenses have been issued.

4. A used motor vehicle ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license shall permit the licensee to engage in the activities of a used motor vehicle ~~salesman~~ salesperson. ~~Salesmen~~ Salespersons shall not be allowed to sell vehicles unless applications, bonds, and fees are on file with the Commission and the motor vehicle ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's or temporary ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license issued. A temporary ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license, ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's renewal or reissue of ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license shall be deemed to have been issued when the appropriate application, bond, and fee have been properly addressed and mailed to the Commission.

Dealers' payrolls and other evidence will be checked to ascertain that all ~~salesmen~~ salespersons for such dealers are licensed.

C. The schedule of license fees to be charged and received by the Commission for the licenses issued hereunder shall be as follows:

1. For each used motor vehicle dealer's license and each wholesale used motor vehicle dealer's license, Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00). If a used motor vehicle dealer or a wholesale used motor vehicle dealer has once been licensed by the Commission in the classification for which he or she applies for a renewal of the license, the fee for each subsequent renewal shall be One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00); provided, if an applicant holds a license to conduct business as an automotive dismantler and parts recycler issued pursuant to Section 591.1 et seq. of this title, the initial

fee shall be One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) and the renewal fee shall be Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00). If an applicant is applying simultaneously for a license under this paragraph and a license under paragraph 1 of Section 591.5 of this title, the initial application fee shall be One Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$150.00);

2. For a used motor vehicle dealer's license, for each place of business in addition to the principal place of business, Fifty Dollars (\$50.00);

3. For each used motor vehicle ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license, Ten Dollars (\$10.00);

4. For each holder who possesses a valid new motor vehicle dealer's license from the Oklahoma Motor Vehicle Commission, One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) shall be the initial fee for a used motor vehicle license and the fee for each subsequent renewal shall be One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00);

5. For each manufactured home dealer's license, and for each place of business in addition to the principal place of business, Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00);

6. For each renewal of a manufactured home dealer's license, and renewal for each place of business in addition to the principal place of business, One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00).

D. 1. The license issued to each used motor vehicle dealer, each wholesale used motor vehicle dealer, and each manufactured home dealer shall specify the location of the place of business. If the business location is changed, the Commission shall be notified immediately of the change and the Commission may endorse the change of location on the license without charge. The license of each dealer shall be posted in a conspicuous place in the dealer's place or places of business.

2. Every used motor vehicle ~~salesman~~ salesperson shall have ~~his~~ the license upon his or her person when engaged in ~~his~~ business, and shall display same upon request. The name of the employer of the ~~salesman~~ salesperson shall be stated on the license and if there is a change of employer, the license holder shall immediately mail ~~his~~ the license to the Commission for its endorsement of the change thereon. There shall be no charge for endorsement of change of employer on the license or penalty for not having a license upon his or her person.

E. 1. a. Each applicant for a used motor vehicle dealer's license shall procure and file with the Commission a good and sufficient bond in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00). Beginning November 1, 1996, each new applicant for a used motor vehicle dealer's license for the purpose of conducting a used motor vehicle auction or whose business will consist primarily of consignment sales which total One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) or more in gross sales shall procure and file with the Commission a good and sufficient bond in the amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00). For purposes of this subsection, "primarily of consignment sales" means seventy-five percent (75%) of sales in number of vehicles sold within the previous twelve (12) months. A new dealer with no history of consignment sales shall be required to purchase a bond in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00). In lieu of the bond, an applicant for a used motor vehicle dealer's license for the purpose of conducting a used motor vehicle auction which is restricted to a dealer-to-dealer transaction may obtain check and title insurance in an amount not less than the amount of the used motor vehicle auction bond.

- b. Each applicant for a wholesale used motor vehicle dealer's license shall procure and file with the Commission a good and sufficient bond in the amount of Twenty-five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000.00).
- c. Each applicant for a manufactured home dealer's license shall procure and file with the Commission a good and sufficient bond in the amount of Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000.00).
- d. The bond shall be approved as to form by the Attorney General and conditioned that the applicant shall not practice fraud, make any fraudulent representation, or violate any of the provisions of this act in the conduct of the business for which ~~he~~ the applicant is licensed. One of the purposes of the bond is to provide reimbursement for any loss or damage suffered by any person by reason of issuance of a certificate of title by a used motor vehicle dealer, a wholesale used motor vehicle dealer, or a manufactured home dealer.

2. If a motor vehicle dealer has a valid license issued by the Oklahoma Motor Vehicle Commission, then the bond as required by this subsection shall be waived.

3. Each applicant for a used motor vehicle ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license shall procure and file with the Commission a good and sufficient bond in the amount of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00). The bond shall be approved as to form by the Attorney General and conditioned that the applicant shall perform ~~his~~ duties as a used motor vehicle ~~salesman~~ salesperson without fraud or fraudulent representation and without violating any provisions of this act.

4. The bonds as required by this section shall be maintained throughout the period of licensure. Should the bond be canceled for any reason, the license shall be revoked as of the date of cancellation unless a new bond is furnished prior to such date.

F. Any used motor vehicle dealer or wholesale used motor vehicle dealer is required to furnish and keep in force a minimum of Twenty-five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000.00) of single liability insurance coverage on all vehicles offered for sale or used in any other capacity in demonstrating or utilizing the streets and roadways in accordance with the financial responsibility laws of this state.

G. Any manufactured home dealer is required to furnish and keep in force a minimum of One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000.00) of garage liability and completed operations insurance coverage.

SECTION 9. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 1991, Section 754, as last amended by Section 7, Chapter 309, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 754), is amended to read as follows:

Section 754. A. Any arrested person who is under twenty-one (21) years of age and has any measurable quantity of alcohol in the person's blood or breath, or any person twenty-one (21) years of age or older whose alcohol concentration is ten-hundredths (0.10) or more as shown by a breath test administered according to the provisions of this title, or any arrested person who has refused to submit to a breath or blood test for alcohol concentration, shall immediately surrender his or her license, permit or other evidence of driving privilege to the arresting law enforcement officer. The officer shall seize any license, permit, or other evidence of driving privilege surrendered by the arrested person or found on the arrested person during a search.

B. If the license, permit, or other evidence of driving privilege seized by the officer has not expired and otherwise appears valid to the officer, the officer shall issue to the arrested person a dated receipt for that license, permit, or other

evidence of driving privilege on a form prescribed by the Department. This receipt shall be recognized as a license and shall authorize the arrested person to operate a motor vehicle for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days. The receipt form shall contain and constitute a notice of revocation of driving privilege by the Department of Public Safety effective in thirty (30) days. The seized license, permit, or other evidence of driving privilege and a copy of the receipt form issued to the arrested person shall be attached to the sworn report of the arresting officer and shall be submitted by mail or in person to the Commissioner of Public Safety or a designated representative within seventy-two (72) hours of the issuance of the receipt. The failure of the arresting officer to timely file this report shall not affect the authority of the Department to revoke the driving privilege of the arrested person.

C. Upon receipt of a written blood or breath test report reflecting that the arrested person had any measurable quantity of alcohol in the person's blood or breath, if the person is under twenty-one (21) years of age, or, if the arrested person is twenty-one (21) years of age or older, an alcohol concentration of ten-hundredths (0.10) or more, accompanied by a sworn report from a law enforcement officer that the officer had reasonable grounds to believe the arrested person had been driving or was in actual physical control of a motor vehicle upon the public roads, highways, streets, turnpikes or other public place of this state while under the influence of alcohol as prohibited by law, the Commissioner of Public Safety shall revoke the privilege to drive of the arrested person and any nonresident operating privilege for a period as provided by Section 6-205.1 of this title. Revocation of the license of the arrested person shall become effective thirty (30) days after the arrested person is given written notice thereof by the arresting officer as hereinbefore provided or by the Department as provided in Section 2-116 of this title.

D. Upon the written request of a person whose privilege to drive has been revoked or denied, the Commissioner of Public Safety shall grant the person an opportunity to be heard if the request is received by the Department within fifteen (15) days after the notice of the revocation is given in accordance with this section or Section 2-116 of this title. The request shall also operate to stay the revocation or denial by the Department until the disposition of the hearing unless the person is under suspension or revocation for some other reason. The Department may issue a temporary driving permit pending disposition of the hearing. If the hearing request is not timely filed, the revocation shall be sustained.

E. 1. At any hearing held relevant to this section, a report of the findings of the laboratory of the Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigation, the medical examiner's report of investigation or autopsy report, or a laboratory report from a forensic laboratory operated by the State of Oklahoma or any political subdivision thereof, which has been made available to the person by the Commissioner or an authorized representative at least five (5) days prior to the hearing, with reference to all or part of the evidence submitted, when certified as correct by the persons making the report shall be received as evidence of the facts and findings stated, if relevant and otherwise admissible in evidence. If such report is deemed relevant by either party, the court shall admit such report without the testimony of the person making the report, unless the court, pursuant to this subsection, orders such person to appear.

2. When any alleged controlled dangerous substance has been submitted to the laboratory of the OSBI for analysis, and such analysis shows that the submitted material is a controlled dangerous substance, the distribution of which constitutes a felony under the

laws of this state, no portion of such substance shall be released to any other person or laboratory absent an order of a district court. The defendant shall additionally be required to submit to the court a procedure for transfer and analysis of the subject material to ensure the integrity of the sample and to prevent the material from being used in any illegal manner.

3. The court, upon motion of either party, shall order the attendance of any person preparing a report submitted as evidence in the hearing when it appears there is a substantial likelihood that material evidence not contained in said report may be produced by the testimony of any person having prepared a report. The hearing shall be held and, if sustained, an order issued not less than five (5) days prior to the time when the testimony shall be required.

4. If within five (5) days prior to the hearing or during a hearing, a motion is made pursuant to this section requiring a person having prepared a report to testify, the court may hear a report or other evidence but shall continue the hearing until such time notice of the motion and hearing is given to the person making the report, the motion is heard, and, if sustained, the testimony ordered can be given.

F. The hearing shall be before the Commissioner of Public Safety or an authorized agent, in the troop headquarters of the Oklahoma Highway Patrol nearest the county wherein the alleged events occurred for which the person was arrested, unless the Commissioner of Public Safety or an authorized agent directs the hearing be held in some other county; or, the Commissioner or an authorized agent may schedule the hearing by telephone and conduct the hearing by telephone conference call. The hearing may be recorded and its scope shall cover the issues of whether the officer had reasonable grounds to believe the person had been driving or was in actual physical control of a vehicle upon the public roads, highways, streets, turnpikes or other public place of this state while under the influence of alcohol, any other intoxicating substance, or the combined influence of alcohol and any other intoxicating substance as prohibited by law, and whether the person was placed under arrest.

1. If the revocation or denial is based upon a breath or blood test result and a sworn report from a law enforcement officer, the scope of the hearing shall also cover the issues as to whether:

- a. the testing procedures used were in accordance with existent rules of the Board of Tests for Alcohol and Drug Influence,
- b. the person was not denied a timely requested breath or blood test,
- c. the breath or blood specimen was obtained from the person within two (2) hours of the actual stop by the officer,
- d. the person, if under twenty-one (21) years of age, was advised that the privilege to drive would be revoked or denied if the test result reflected the presence of any measurable quantity of alcohol,
- e. the person was informed that a separate testing of the sample taken by the breathalyzer can be analyzed by the person at his or her own expense within sixty (60) days of the test date,
- f. the person, if twenty-one (21) years of age or older, was advised that the privilege to drive would be revoked or denied if the test result reflected an alcohol concentration of ten-hundredths (0.10) or more, and
- g. the test result in fact reflects such alcohol concentration;

2. If the revocation or denial is based upon the refusal of the person to submit to a breath or blood test, reflected in a sworn report by a law enforcement officer, the scope of the hearing shall also include whether:

- a. the person refused to submit to the test or tests, and
- b. the person was informed that the privilege to drive would be revoked or denied if the person refused to submit to the test or tests.

~~F. G.~~ After the hearing, the Commissioner of Public Safety or an authorized agent shall order the revocation or denial rescinded or sustained.

SECTION 10. AMENDATORY 51 O.S. 1991, Section 24A.1, as amended by Section 41, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996 (51 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 24A.1), is amended to read as follows:

Section 24A.1 ~~Sections Section 24A.1 through 24A.22 et seq.~~ of this title ~~and Section 42 of this act~~ shall be known and may be cited as the "Oklahoma Open Records Act".

SECTION 11. AMENDATORY Section 2, Chapter 257, O.S.L. 1992, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1996 (52 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 288.2), is amended to read as follows:

Section 288.2 As used in the Oklahoma Energy Education and Marketing Act, Section 288.1 et seq. of this title:

1. "Board" means the Oklahoma Energy Resources Board;
2. "Person" means any individual, group of individuals, or any partnership, corporation, association, cooperative, or employee thereof, or any other entity;
3. "Independent producer" means any person:
 - a. who produces oil or natural gas and is not engaged in refining or marketing of such products, or
 - b. who derives a majority of his or her oil- or natural gas-related income from working interest;
4. "Major oil company" means any person who produces oil or natural gas in the State of Oklahoma and who is a retailer as defined in IRS Code Sec. 613A (d) (2) or a refiner as defined in Sec. 613A (d) (4) of the Code or is a subsidiary, directly or indirectly, of a company that is classified as a major oil company as defined herein; and
5. "Qualified independent producer association" means an entity in existence as of January 1, 1992, that is organized and operating within the state, a majority of whose governing body are independent producers and which represents the independent oil or natural gas industry on a statewide basis.

SECTION 12. AMENDATORY 62 O.S. 1991, Section 7.2, as last amended by Section 6, Chapter 290, O.S.L. 1996 (62 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7.2), is amended to read as follows:

Section 7.2 A. There is hereby re-created, to continue until July 1, ~~1996~~ 2002, in accordance with the provisions of the Oklahoma Sunset Law, Section 3901 et seq. of Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes, a Special Agency Account Board, to consist of the Director of State Finance, the State Treasurer and the Director of the Legislative Service Bureau. The Board shall have the authority to approve the establishment of agency special accounts in the official depository of the State Treasury. In the case of institutions of higher education, the Special Agency Account Board, acting in conjunction with the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education, shall establish special agency accounts as appropriate which shall be consistent with provisions of the Oklahoma Budget Law of 1947, Section 41.1 et seq. of this title, as it relates to institutions in The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education.

B. The Board, created by this section, shall adopt procedures including application forms, justification and other pertinent information as to the basis for a state agency application for the establishment of agency special accounts.

C. The Board may approve agency special accounts for money received by state agencies for the following purposes:

1. Benefit programs for individuals, including, but not limited to, unemployment compensation, workers' compensation and state retirement programs;

2. Revenues produced by activities or facilities ancillary to the operation of a state agency which receive no money, directly or indirectly, from or through that state agency, including, but not limited to, revenues from the sales of food at retail level, sales at canteens, sales at student unions, sales at student bookstores, receipts from athletic programs and receipts from housing. Provided, however, that a state institution of higher learning may purchase necessary equipment and instructional supplies and office supplies from a student bookstore, or, subject to authorization by the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education, may rent building space for institutional use in a building operated by an organization or entity whose existence is ancillary to the operation of a state agency, and whose cost was financed in whole or in part with revenue-type bonds; provided, further, that the cost of such office supplies or space rental shall not exceed the cost of similar supplies or rentals available commercially;

3. Gifts, devises and bequests with an agency as beneficiary, unless otherwise provided by statute;

4. Evidence funds for law enforcement agencies;

5. Student loan funds and scholarship funds;

6. Funds held in escrow;

7. Land Commission funds;

8. Funds for which the state agency acts as custodian, including, but not limited to, fees from employee earnings approved by the governing board of the agency, funds of student organizations including student activity fees collected by an educational institution as a separate item in enrollment procedures, professional organizations, patients and inmates;

9. Funds used by the Oklahoma Tax Commission to pay for the filing of liens with the Federal Aviation Administration;

10. Temporary accounts for funds arising from new or amended legislation not otherwise provided for in statute or for other emergency situations. Such accounts are to be utilized only pending legislative action directing custody of such funds;

11. Payment of liability claims against the state;

12. Activities of the various Armory Boards of the Oklahoma Military Department to receive and dispense funds derived by the Armory Boards pursuant to Sections 232.6 and 232.7 of Title 44 of the Oklahoma Statutes; and

13. Payment of expenses incurred in connection with the acceptance of payments made with nationally recognized credit cards.

D. The State Treasurer is authorized to accept deposit of money made directly to agency special accounts approved by the Board. All money received by a state agency, as described in Section 7.1 of this title, shall be deposited in State Treasury funds or accounts and no money shall be deposited in banks or other depositories unless the bank accounts are maintained by the State Treasurer or are for the deposit of authorized petty cash funds.

E. Money deposited in agency special accounts shall be disbursed on vouchers issued by the state agency concerned to accomplish the purpose for which the money was intended.

F. Funds and revenues of the Grand River Dam Authority are exempt from the requirements of this section.

G. Funds and revenues of the Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority are exempt from the requirements of this section.

H. Monies used for investment purposes by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System, the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, the Uniform Retirement System for

Justices and Judges, the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System, the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System, the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma, the State Insurance Fund, the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board, the Commissioners of the Land Office, and the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education for its Endowment Trust Fund are exempt from the requirements of this section, and shall be placed with the respective custodian bank or trust company.

SECTION 13. AMENDATORY 62 O.S. 1991, Section 41.21, as last amended by Section 9, Chapter 290, O.S.L. 1996 (62 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 41.21), is amended to read as follows:

Section 41.21 A. Except as otherwise provided by subsections B, C, D, E, F, G ~~and~~ H and K of this section, procedures for effecting payment of claims or payrolls shall include the following:

1. All miscellaneous claims and payroll claims which are to be used to authorize the payment of money from the State Treasury, shall be filed with the Director of State Finance for audit and settlement prior to being filed for payment with the State Treasurer; provided, the Director of State Finance may establish alternative procedures for the settlement of claims through the Office of State Finance whenever such procedures are deemed more advantageous and consistent with the requirements of this act. Such procedures may include, but are not limited to, at the discretion of the Director of State Finance:

- a. a procedure to permit consolidated payment to vendors for claims involving more than one agency of the state when audit and settlement of such claims, as hereinafter provided, can in all respects be accomplished,
- b. procedures based upon valid statistical sampling models for preaudit of claims, except for payroll claims and travel claims, against contracts, purchase orders and other commitments before entering such claims against the appropriation allotment accounts, and
- c. policies, procedures and performance criteria for the participation of agencies or departments, not authorized in subsections B through H of this section, to engage in an alternative system for the settlement of claims through the Office of State Finance; and

2. After claims or payrolls or both have been properly audited and recorded against the respective contracts, purchase orders, other commitments and appropriation allotment accounts, the Division of Central Accounting and Reporting shall certify such claims or payrolls to the State Treasurer for payment. It shall be the responsibility of the Division of Central Accounting and Reporting to determine:

- a. that all material legal requirements concerning the expenditure of monies involved in each claim or payroll have been complied with, and
- b. that funds have been properly and legally allotted for the payment of the claim or payroll and that a sufficient balance exists for the payment of same.

Sufficient space shall be provided on each claim and payroll for the Director of State Finance to indicate that the claim or payroll has been approved for payment by the Division of Central Accounting and Reporting. The Director of State Finance shall authorize bonded employees in the Division of Central Accounting and Reporting to execute the signed approval of each claim or payroll which shall be certified to the State Treasurer for payment.

B. The Department of Human Services is authorized to establish an encumbrance and preaudit system for settlement of claims relating to public assistance, social service benefits and medical benefits

to or for persons eligible under applicable federal laws and ~~regulations~~ rules, Oklahoma Statutes, and policies established by the Oklahoma Commission for Human Services. The following programs shall be eligible for this procedure:

1. Aid to Families with Dependent Children;
2. Aid to Aged, Blind and Disabled;
3. Medical Assistance;
4. Day Care;
5. Refugee Resettlement;
6. Low Income Heating and Energy Assistance;
7. General Assistance;
8. Crippled Children;
9. Social Services under Title XX of the U.S. Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C., Section 301 et seq.;
10. Adoption Subsidies;
11. Foster Care;
12. Medical Examination;
13. Area Agencies on Aging;
14. Any contract for service for which the Department of Central Services has approved as qualifying for a fixed and uniform rate pursuant to Section 85.7 of Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes;
15. Sheltered Workshops;
16. Contracted Group Homes;
17. Rehabilitative Client Interpreters;
18. Rehabilitative Client Drivers; and
19. Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant.

The Department of Human Services shall provide to the Director of State Finance, for approval prior to inclusion in this procedure, detailed listings of the type of payments to be made for each of these programs. The Department of Human Services shall provide the Director of State Finance a daily report of the dollar amount of claims settled and checks or warrants written, the dollar amount of checks or warrants canceled, and the dollar amount of checks or warrants canceled by statutes.

C. The State Department of Rehabilitation Services is authorized to establish an encumbrance and preaudit system for settlement of claims relating to social service benefits and medical benefits to or for persons eligible under applicable federal laws and regulations, Oklahoma Statutes, and policies established by the Commission for Rehabilitation Services for the following programs:

1. Vocational and other rehabilitation;
2. Educational services;
3. Disability Determination Services; and
4. Visual Services.

The State Department of Rehabilitation Services shall provide to the Director of State Finance, for approval prior to inclusion in this procedure, detailed listings of the type of payments to be made for each of these programs. The State Department of Rehabilitation Services shall provide the Director of State Finance a daily report of the dollar amount of claims settled and checks or warrants written, the dollar amount of checks or warrants canceled, and the dollar amount of checks or warrants canceled by statutes.

D. The Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education and the Director of State Finance shall jointly establish a system for the settlement of claims, ~~excepting~~ except for payroll, by entities of The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education. The settlement system shall include policy, procedures, and performance criteria for participation. The State Regents are authorized to approve or disapprove the participation of any institution or other entity of the State System in the claims settlement system.

E. Agencies administering certain major federal assistance programs are authorized to establish a preaudit and settlement system for claims or payments or both relating to the purposes of

the stated federal assistance programs. The State Treasurer shall promulgate rules ~~and regulations~~ for the state in accordance with Federal Banking and National Automated Clearing House Association standards and agencies shall be required to utilize automated clearing house procedures and ~~regulations~~ rules established by the State Treasurer provided that no individual or entity shall be required to have a bank account unless required by federal law or federal regulation. Agencies shall be further required to present these transactions to the Office of State Finance in a summarized format and shall include any accounting information necessary as determined by the Director of State Finance including, but not limited to, information related to Public Law 101-453 the Cash Management Improvement Act, 31 U.S.C., Sections 3335, 6501 and 6503. Expenditures for administration of the stated federal assistance programs shall not be eligible for these procedures.

The following programs shall be eligible for this procedure:

1. National School Lunch Program;
2. Job Training Partnership Act, 29 U.S.C., Section 1501 et seq.;
3. Chapter 1 Programs - Local Education Agencies;
4. Pell Grant Program;
5. School Breakfast Program;
6. Federal, State and Local Partnerships for Educational Improvement;
7. Unemployment Trust Fund;
8. Special Education State Grants;
9. Alcohol and Drug Abuse and Mental Health Services Block Grant;
10. Child and Adult Care Food Program;
11. Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants and Children;
12. Community Development Block Grant;
13. Community Services Block Grant;
14. Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States;
15. Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds;
16. Highway Planning and Construction (contractor estimates and right-of-way payments);
17. Special Milk Program;
18. Summer Food Service;
19. U.S. Departments of Health and Human Services, Housing and Urban Development, Education, and the Bureau of Indian Affairs grant awards administered by the Oklahoma Department of Education and ultimately received by eligible subrecipients;
20. Home Investment Partnership Program;
21. Emergency Shelter Grant Program;
22. Rental Rehabilitation;
23. Emergency Homeless Program;
24. Weatherization;
25. Employment Service;
26. Veterans State Nursing Home Care;
27. Cooperative Extension Service;
28. Rehabilitative Services-Base Support;
29. Medical Assistance;
30. Social Security Disability Insurance;
31. Food Stamps;
32. Payments to States for Child Care Assistance;
33. Drug Free Schools and Communities - State Grants;
34. Drug Control and System Improvement - Formula Grant;
35. Disaster Assistance; and
36. Low Income Heating and Energy Assistance.

The Director of State Finance shall establish a disbursing fund which shall receive all federal, state matching and other funds

which make up the total funding sources for each of the above federal programs.

F. The Director of State Finance shall be authorized to process payments for federal tax withholding without claim forms. The Director of State Finance shall establish a separate fund for the purpose of accumulating federal income tax withholding from payrolls and remitting same to the United States Treasury.

G. The Department of Education and the State Department of Vocational and Technical Education are authorized to establish a preaudit and settlement system for claims and/or payments of state funded assistance to school districts and institutions within the Oklahoma State System of Higher Education. The payment system shall be neutral as to interest income to the state and the school districts.

H. The Director of State Finance shall be authorized to process, without claim forms, interest payments to the U.S. Treasury as required by Public Law 191-453, the Cash Management Improvement Act, 31 U.S.C., Sections 3335, 6501 and 6503. Agencies are responsible for the accrual of such interest liability of the state and shall provide payment to the Office of State Finance in the amount and method prescribed by the Office of State Finance. Any liability of the U.S. Treasury as determined by Public Law 191-453, the Cash Management Improvement Act, 31 U.S.C., Sections 3335, 6501 and 6503 shall be deposited in the State Treasury and transferred by the Director of State Finance to the General Revenue Fund of the state subsequent to final determination and necessary audit resolution.

I. The State Treasurer shall write checks or warrants in payment of claims and payrolls certified to ~~him or her~~ the State Treasurer for payment by the Division of Central Accounting and Reporting or the Department of Human Services or institutions within The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education. The State Treasurer, ~~at his or her discretion and~~ within such limitations as ~~he or she~~ the State Treasurer may prescribe, may authorize the Director of State Finance, the Department of Human Services, or an institution within The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education to write the checks or warrants for payment of claims and payrolls that have been certified by the respective agency. The Director of State Finance, the Department of Human Services, and The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education institutions shall provide the State Treasurer a register of each payment for each check or warrant written. Provided, in lieu of checks or warrants:

1. The Director of State Finance may, with the concurrence of the State Treasurer, establish a procedure to effect the settlement of interagency claims by transfer entry; and

2. At the discretion of the State Treasurer, payment of claims and payrolls may be made by the electronic transfer of funds.

Such optional settlement modes may be implemented when the authorized officer or officers of the state are satisfied such modes will substantially operate to the benefit of the state and without sacrifice to the security and integrity of the monies and records of the state.

J. The Director of State Finance is authorized to use a numeric or alphanumeric designation to cross-reference claims or payrolls to check warrant numbers, transfer entry or optional settlement mode used in the payment thereof.

K. The Department of Human Services and the Director of State Finance shall jointly establish a system for the settlement of claims, except for payroll, by the Department of Human Services. The settlement system shall include policy, procedures and performance criteria for participation.

SECTION 14. AMENDATORY 63 O.S. 1991, Section 2-101, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 306, O.S.L. 1996 (63 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 2-101), is amended to read as follows:

Section 2-101. As used in the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Act, Section 2-101 et seq. of this title:

1. "Administer" means the direct application of a controlled dangerous substance, whether by injection, inhalation, ingestion or any other means, to the body of a patient, animal or research subject by:

- a. a practitioner (or, in ~~his~~ the presence of the practitioner, by ~~his~~ the authorized agent of the practitioner), or
- b. the patient or research subject at the direction and in the presence of the practitioner;

2. "Agent" means a peace officer appointed by and who acts in behalf of the Director of the Oklahoma State Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control or an authorized person who acts on behalf of or at the direction of a person who manufactures, distributes, dispenses, prescribes, administers or uses for scientific purposes controlled dangerous substances but does not include a common or contract carrier, public warehouseman or employee thereof, or a person required to register under the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Act;

3. "Board" means the Advisory Board to the Director of the Oklahoma State Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control;

4. "Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs" means the Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs, United States Department of Justice;

5. "Coca leaves" includes cocaine and any compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture or preparation of coca leaves, except derivatives of coca leaves which do not contain cocaine or ecgonine;

6. "Commissioner" or "Director" means the Director of the Oklahoma State Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control;

7. "Control" means to add, remove or change the placement of a drug, substance or immediate precursor under the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Act;

8. "Controlled dangerous substance" means a drug, substance or immediate precursor in Schedules I through V of the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Act, Section 2-101 et seq. of this title;

9. "Counterfeit substance" means a controlled substance which, or the container or labeling of which without authorization, bears the trademark, trade name or other identifying marks, imprint, number or device or any likeness thereof of a manufacturer, distributor or dispenser other than the person who in fact manufactured, distributed or dispensed the substance;

10. "Deliver" or "delivery" means the actual, constructive or attempted transfer from one person to another of a controlled dangerous substance, whether or not there is an agency relationship;

11. "Dispense" means to deliver a controlled dangerous substance to an ultimate user or human research subject by or pursuant to the lawful order of a practitioner, including the prescribing, administering, packaging, labeling or compounding necessary to prepare the substance for such distribution.

"Dispenser" is a practitioner who delivers a controlled dangerous substance to an ultimate user or human research subject;

12. "Distribute" means to deliver other than by administering or dispensing a controlled dangerous substance;

13. "Distributor" means a commercial entity engaged in the distribution or reverse distribution of narcotics and dangerous drugs and who complies with all regulations promulgated by the

federal Drug Enforcement Administration and the Oklahoma State Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control;

14. "Drug" means articles recognized in the official United States Pharmacopoeia, official Homeopathic Pharmacopoeia of the United States, or official National Formulary, or any supplement to any of them; articles intended for use in the diagnosis, cure, mitigation, treatment or prevention of disease in man or other animals; articles (other than food) intended to affect the structure or any function of the body of man or other animals; and articles intended for use as a component of any article specified in this paragraph; but does not include devices or their components, parts or accessories;

15. "Drug-dependent person" means a person who is using a controlled dangerous substance and who is in a state of psychic or physical dependence, or both, arising from administration of that controlled dangerous substance on a continuous basis. Drug dependence is characterized by behavioral and other responses which include a strong compulsion to take the substance on a continuous basis in order to experience its psychic effects, or to avoid the discomfort of its absence;

16. "Home care agency" means any sole proprietorship, partnership, association, corporation, or other organization which administers, offers, or provides home care services, for a fee or pursuant to a contract for such services, to clients in their place of residence;

17. "Home care services" means skilled or personal care services provided to clients in their place of residence for a fee;

18. "Hospice" means a centrally administered, nonprofit or profit, medically directed, nurse-coordinated program located in a municipality with a population in excess of twenty-five thousand (25,000) which provides a continuum of home and inpatient care for the terminally ill patient and the patient's family. Such term shall also include a centrally administered, nonprofit or profit, medically directed, nurse-coordinated program located in a municipality with a population of less than twenty-five thousand (25,000) if such program is licensed pursuant to the provisions of this act. A hospice program offers palliative and supportive care to meet the special needs arising out of the physical, emotional and spiritual stresses which are experienced during the final stages of illness and during dying and bereavement. This care is available twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, and is provided on the basis of need, regardless of ability to pay. "Class A" Hospice refers to Medicare certified hospices. "Class B" refers to all other providers of hospice services;

19. "Imitation controlled substance" means a substance that is not a controlled dangerous substance, which by dosage unit appearance, color, shape, size, markings or by representations made, would lead a reasonable person to believe that the substance is a controlled dangerous substance. In the event the appearance of the dosage unit is not reasonably sufficient to establish that the substance is an "imitation controlled substance", the court or authority concerned should consider, in addition to all other factors, the following factors as related to "representations made" in determining whether the substance is an "imitation controlled substance":

- a. statements made by an owner or by any other person in control of the substance concerning the nature of the substance, or its use or effect,
- b. statements made to the recipient that the substance may be resold for inordinate profit,
- c. whether the substance is packaged in a manner normally used for illicit controlled substances,

- d. evasive tactics or actions utilized by the owner or person in control of the substance to avoid detection by law enforcement authorities,
- e. prior convictions, if any, of an owner, or any other person in control of the object, under state or federal law related to controlled substances or fraud, and
- f. the proximity of the substances to controlled dangerous substances;

20. "Immediate precursor" means a substance which the Director has found to be and by regulation designates as being the principal compound commonly used or produced primarily for use, and which is an immediate chemical intermediary used, or likely to be used, in the manufacture of a controlled dangerous substance, the control of which is necessary to prevent, curtail or limit such manufacture;

21. "Laboratory" means a laboratory approved by the Director as proper to be entrusted with the custody of controlled dangerous substances and the use of controlled dangerous substances for scientific and medical purposes and for purposes of instruction;

22. "Manufacture" means the production, preparation, propagation, compounding or processing of a controlled dangerous substance, either directly or indirectly by extraction from substances of natural or synthetic origin, or independently by means of chemical synthesis or by a combination of extraction and chemical synthesis. "Manufacturer" includes any person who packages, repackages or labels any container of any controlled dangerous substance, except practitioners who dispense or compound prescription orders for delivery to the ultimate consumer;

23. "Marihuana" means all parts of the plant *Cannabis sativa* L., whether growing or not; the seeds thereof; the resin extracted from any part of such plant; and every compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture or preparation of such plant, its seeds or resin, but shall not include the mature stalks of such plant, fiber produced from such stalks, oil or cake made from the seeds of such plant, any other compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture or preparation of such mature stalks (except the resin extracted therefrom), fiber, oil or cake, or the sterilized seed of such plant which is incapable of germination;

24. "Medical purpose" means an intention to utilize a controlled dangerous substance for physical or mental treatment, diagnosis or for the prevention of a disease condition not in violation of any state or federal law and not for the purpose of satisfying physiological or psychological dependence or other abuse;

25. "Narcotic drug" means any of the following, whether produced directly or indirectly by extraction from substances of vegetable origin, or independently by means of chemical synthesis, or by a combination of extraction and chemical synthesis:

- a. opium, coca leaves and opiates,
- b. a compound, manufacture, salt, derivative or preparation of opium, coca leaves or opiates,
- c. cocaine, its salts, optical and geometric isomers, and salts of isomers,
- d. ecgonine, its derivatives, their salts, isomers and salts of isomers, and
- e. a substance, and any compound, manufacture, salt, derivative or preparation thereof, which is chemically identical with any of the substances referred to in subparagraphs a through d of this paragraph, except that the words "narcotic drug" as used in Section 2-101 et seq. of this title shall not include decocainized coca leaves or extracts of coca leaves, which extracts do not contain cocaine or ecgonine;

26. "Opiate" means any substance having an addiction-forming or addiction-sustaining liability similar to morphine or being capable of conversion into a drug having such addiction-forming or addiction-sustaining liability. It does not include, unless specifically designated as controlled under the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Act, the dextrorotatory isomer of 3-methoxy-n-methyl-morphinan and its salts (dextromethorphan). It does include its racemic and levorotatory forms;

27. "Opium poppy" means the plant of the species *Papaver somniferum* L., except the seeds thereof;

28. "Peace officer" means a police officer, sheriff, deputy sheriff, district attorney's investigator, investigator from the Office of the Attorney General, or any other person elected or appointed by law to enforce any of the criminal laws of this state or of the United States;

29. "Person" means individual, corporation, government or governmental subdivision or agency, business trust, estate, trust, partnership or association, or any other legal entity;

30. "Poppy straw" means all parts, except the seeds, of the opium poppy, after mowing;

31. "Practitioner" means:

- a. (1) a physician,
- (2) a dentist,
- (3) a podiatrist,
- (4) an optometrist,
- (5) a veterinarian,
- (6) an advanced practice nurse recognized to prescribe by the Oklahoma Board of Nursing as an advanced registered nurse practitioner, clinical nurse specialist or certified nurse-midwife, subject to the medical direction of a supervising physician, pursuant to Section 567.3a of Title 59 of the Oklahoma Statutes,
- (7) a scientific investigator, or
- (8) any other person,

licensed, registered or otherwise permitted to prescribe, distribute, dispense, conduct research with respect to, use for scientific purposes or administer a controlled dangerous substance in the course of professional practice or research in this state, or

- b. a pharmacy, hospital, laboratory or other institution licensed, registered or otherwise permitted to distribute, dispense, conduct research with respect to, use for scientific purposes or administer a controlled dangerous substance in the course of professional practice or research in this state;

32. "Production" includes the manufacture, planting, cultivation, growing or harvesting of a controlled dangerous substance;

33. "State" means the State of Oklahoma or any other state of the United States;

34. "Ultimate user" means a person who lawfully possesses a controlled dangerous substance for ~~his~~ the person's own use or for the use of a member of ~~his~~ the person's household or for administration to an animal owned by ~~him~~ the person or by a member of ~~his~~ the person's household;

35. "Drug paraphernalia" means all equipment, products and materials of any kind which are used or intended for use in planting, propagating, cultivating, growing, harvesting, manufacturing, compounding, converting, producing, processing, preparing, testing, analyzing, packaging, repackaging, storing, containing, concealing, injecting, ingesting, inhaling or otherwise introducing into the human body, a controlled dangerous substance in

violation of the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Act.—It ~~includes~~ including, but ~~is~~ not limited to:

- a. kits used or intended for use in planting, propagating, cultivating, growing or harvesting of any species of plant which is a controlled dangerous substance or from which a controlled dangerous substance can be derived,
- b. kits used or intended for use in manufacturing, compounding, converting, producing, processing or preparing controlled dangerous substances,
- c. isomerization devices used or intended for use in increasing the potency of any species of plant which is a controlled dangerous substance,
- d. testing equipment used or intended for use in identifying, or in analyzing the strength, effectiveness or purity of controlled dangerous substances,
- e. scales and balances used or intended for use in weighing or measuring controlled dangerous substances,
- f. diluents and adulterants, such as quinine hydrochloride, mannitol, mannite, dextrose and lactose, used or intended for use in cutting controlled dangerous substances,
- g. separation gins and sifters used or intended for use in removing twigs and seeds from, or in otherwise cleaning or refining, marihuana,
- h. blenders, bowls, containers, spoons and mixing devices used or intended for use in compounding controlled dangerous substances,
- i. capsules, balloons, envelopes and other containers used or intended for use in packaging small quantities of controlled dangerous substances,
- j. containers and other objects used or intended for use in parenterally injecting controlled dangerous substances into the human body,
- k. hypodermic syringes, needles and other objects used or intended for use in parenterally injecting controlled dangerous substances into the human body, and
- l. objects used or intended for use in ingesting, inhaling or otherwise introducing marihuana, cocaine, hashish or hashish oil into the human body, such as:
 - (1) metal, wooden, acrylic, glass, stone, plastic or ceramic pipes with or without screens, permanent screens, hashish heads or punctured metal bowls,
 - (2) water pipes,
 - (3) carburetion tubes and devices,
 - (4) smoking and carburetion masks,
 - (5) roach clips, meaning objects used to hold burning material, such as a marihuana cigarette, that has become too small or too short to be held in the hand,
 - (6) miniature cocaine spoons and cocaine vials,
 - (7) chamber pipes,
 - (8) carburetor pipes,
 - (9) electric pipes,
 - (10) air-driven pipes,
 - (11) chillums,
 - (12) bongs, or
 - (13) ice pipes or chillers.

Provided however, drug paraphernalia shall not include separation gins intended for use in preparing tea or spice, clamps used for constructing electrical equipment, water pipes designed for ornamentation or pipes designed for smoking tobacco;

36. "Synthetic controlled substance" means a substance that is not a controlled dangerous substance, but a substance that produces a like or similar physiological or psychological effect on the human central nervous system that currently has no accepted medical use in treatment in the United States and has a potential for abuse. The court or authority concerned with establishing that the substance is a synthetic controlled substance should consider, in addition to all other factors, the following factors as related to "representations made" in determining whether the substance is a synthetic controlled substance:

- a. statements made by an owner or by any other person in control of the substance concerning the nature of the substance, its use or effect,
- b. statements made to the recipient that the substance may be resold for an inordinate profit,
- c. prior convictions, if any, of an owner or any person in control of the substance, under state or federal law related to controlled dangerous substances, and
- d. the proximity of the substance to any controlled dangerous substance;

37. "Tetrahydrocannabinols" means all substances that have been chemically synthesized to emulate the tetrahydrocannabinols of marihuana;

38. "Isomer" means the optical isomer, except as used in subsection C of Section 2-204 of this title and paragraph 4 of subsection A of Section 2-206 of this title. As used in subsection C of Section 2-204 of this title, "isomer" means the optical, positional or geometric isomer. As used in paragraph 4 of subsection A of Section 2-206 of this title, the term "isomer" means the optical or geometric isomer; and

39. "Hazardous materials" means materials, whether solid, liquid or gas, which are toxic to human, animal, aquatic or plant life, and the disposal of which materials is controlled by state or federal guidelines.

SECTION 15. AMENDATORY Section 3, Chapter 263, O.S.L. 1995, as amended by Section 6, Chapter 326, O.S.L. 1996 (63 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 3224), is amended to read as follows:

Section 3224. A. The State of Oklahoma expressly approves the creation of a public trust to be denominated the "University Hospitals Trust", of which the State of Oklahoma shall be the beneficiary, provided such approval shall be contingent upon the following conditions being satisfied:

1. Finalizing of the Declaration of Trust;
2. Adoption of the Declaration of Trust by an official action of the trustees of the Trust;
3. Submission of the Trust for acceptance of the beneficial interest and approval as required by Section 177 of Title 60 of the Oklahoma Statutes; and
4. The approved Declaration of Trust shall:
 - a. clearly state that the principal purpose of the University Hospitals Trust is to effectuate the purposes of the University Hospitals Authority as established in the University Hospitals Authority Act,
 - b. except as otherwise provided by law, provide that the title to real property held by the University Hospitals Authority shall not be transferred, conveyed, or assigned to the University Hospitals Trust without the express consent of the Legislature as the governing entity of the beneficiary pursuant to Section 176 of Title 60 of the Oklahoma Statutes,
 - c. provide that any indebtedness incurred by the University Hospitals Trust or the trustees of the Trust shall not be secured with or create a lien upon

- real property to which title is held by the University Hospitals Authority and shall not involve the bonding capacity of the University Hospitals Authority,
- d. provide that the trust estate of the University Hospitals Trust shall not include real property to which fee simple title is held by the University Hospitals Authority,
 - e. clearly state that the creation of the University Hospitals Trust shall not in any way reduce, limit or interfere with the power granted to the University Hospitals Authority in the University Hospitals Authority Act,
 - f. provide that any lease or contractual agreement involving use of the real property to which title is held by the University Hospitals Authority and any improvements thereto shall contain a provision and covenants requiring the proper maintenance and upkeep of the real property and improvements,
 - g. provide that the trustees of the University Hospitals Trust shall be the acting members of the University Hospitals Authority as provided in the University Hospitals Authority Act, and
 - h. provide that the trustees of the University Hospitals Trust shall have the duty to submit an annual report to the Governor, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate ~~and~~, the Speaker of the House of Representatives and members of the Task Force created by subsection D of this section. The report shall be submitted by January 1 of each year and shall include an account of all operations, actions of the Trust, account of all revenue received and disbursed by the Trust for the previous fiscal year. The report shall also provide a complete accounting of how the Trust meets its primary function of effectuating the purposes of the University Hospitals Authority, as established in the University Hospitals Authority Act. The Trust shall meet with the Task Force created in subsection D of this section to review the contents of the annual report.

B. The University Hospitals Trust shall require any agreements which it enters into with any entity pursuant to Section 3226 of this title for the operations of facilities leased by the University Hospitals Authority to the Trust to include, but not be limited to:

1. The inclusion of four of the five members of the Trust as four of the five members representing the State of Oklahoma in a governing entity;
2. Binding arbitration shall not be involved in such agreements for resolving issues under consideration by the governing entity; and
3. Major decisions to be resolved by a majority of the state appointees. Major decisions shall include, but not be limited to:
 - a. approval of the operating and capital budgets,
 - b. sale or disposition of assets over Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000.00), and
 - c. significant program changes at the University Hospitals.

C. To the extent it is determined by legislative enactment that the Trust has expended funds in contravention of its mission as set forth in this section, the Trust shall remit, upon thirty (30) days' written notice from the University Hospitals Authority, such sum or sums to the University Hospitals Authority.

D. There is hereby created the "University Hospitals Trust Legislative Advisory Task Force".

1. The Speaker of the House of Representatives and the President Pro Tempore of the Senate shall each appoint three legislators from their respective legislative bodies, provided that they shall each appoint one member from the minority party.

2. The chair and vice-chair position shall rotate between the House of Representatives and Senate, provided that the Speaker shall appoint the initial chair whose term shall expire on the first day of the First Regular Session of the Forty-sixth Oklahoma Legislature. The chair and vice-chair shall rotate on the first day of the first regular sessions of subsequent legislatures.

3. Members of the Task Force shall be reimbursed by their respective legislative bodies for necessary duties related to the Task Force pursuant to Section 456 of Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

4. The purpose of the Task Force is to provide a means of communication between the Legislature and the University Hospitals Trust. The Trust shall invite members to attend meetings of the Trust. Task Force members shall be able to participate in discussions of the Trust in an advisory capacity.

SECTION 16. AMENDATORY 68 O.S. 1991, Section 1357, as last amended by Section 3, Chapter 342, O.S.L. 1996 (68 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1357), is amended to read as follows:

Section 1357. Exemption - General.

There are hereby specifically exempted from the tax levied by Section 1350 et seq. of this title:

1. Transportation of school pupils to and from elementary schools or high schools in motor or other vehicles;

2. Transportation of persons where the fare of each person does not exceed One Dollar (\$1.00), or local transportation of persons within the corporate limits of a municipality except by taxicabs;

3. Sales for resale to persons engaged in the business of reselling the articles purchased, whether within or without the state, provided that such sales to residents of this state are made to persons to whom sales tax permits have been issued as provided in this article. This exemption shall not apply to the sales of articles made to persons holding permits when such persons purchase items for their use and which they are not regularly engaged in the business of reselling; neither shall this exemption apply to sales of tangible personal property to peddlers, solicitors and other salesmen who do not have an established place of business and a sales tax permit. The exemption provided by this paragraph shall apply to sales of motor fuel or diesel fuel to a Group Five vendor, but the use of such motor fuel or diesel fuel by the Group Five vendor shall not be exempt from the tax levied by Section 1350 et seq. of this title. The purchase of motor fuel or diesel fuel is exempt from sales tax when the motor fuel is for shipment outside this state and consumed by a common carrier by rail in the conduct of its business. The sales tax shall apply to the purchase of motor fuel or diesel fuel in Oklahoma by a common carrier by rail when such motor fuel is purchased for fueling, within this state, of any locomotive or other motorized flanged wheel equipment;

4. Sales of advertising space in newspapers and periodicals and billboard advertising service, and any advertising through the electronic media, including radio, television and cable television;

5. Eggs, feed, supplies, machinery and equipment purchased by persons regularly engaged in the business of raising worms, fish, any insect or any other form of terrestrial or aquatic animal life and used for the purpose of raising same for marketing. This exemption shall only be granted and extended to the purchaser when the items are to be used and in fact are used in the raising of animal life as set out above. Each purchaser shall certify, in writing, on the invoice or sales ticket retained by the vendor that the purchaser is regularly engaged in the business of raising such

animal life and that the items purchased will be used only in such business. The vendor shall certify to the Oklahoma Tax Commission that the price of the items has been reduced to grant the full benefit of the exemption. Violation hereof by the purchaser or vendor shall be a misdemeanor;

6. Sale of natural or artificial gas and electricity when sold exclusively for residential use after December 31, 1980. Provided, nothing herein shall be construed as limiting or prohibiting cities and towns, and counties levying a tax pursuant to the provisions of Section 1370.2 of this title, from levying and collecting taxes on the sale of natural or artificial gas and electricity. Provided further, any sales tax levied by a city or town, or a county levying a tax pursuant to the provisions of Section 1370.2 of this title, on natural or artificial gas and electricity shall be in effect regardless of ordinance or contractual provisions referring to previously imposed state sales tax on such items;

7. In addition to the exemptions authorized by Section 1357.6 of this title, sales of medicines or drugs prescribed for the treatment of human beings by a person licensed to prescribe the medicines or drugs. Provided, this exemption shall not apply to proprietary or patent medicines as defined by Section 353.1 of Title 59 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

8. Transfers of title or possession of empty, partially filled, or filled returnable oil and chemical drums to any person who is not regularly engaged in the business of selling, reselling or otherwise transferring empty, partially filled, or filled returnable oil drums;

9. Sales of one-way utensils, paper napkins, paper cups, disposable hot containers and other one-way carry out materials to a vendor of meals or beverages;

10. Sales of food or food products for home consumption which are purchased in whole or in part with coupons issued pursuant to the federal food stamp program as authorized by Sections 2011 through 2029 of Title 7 of the United States Code, as to that portion purchased with such coupons. The exemption provided for such sales shall be inapplicable to such sales upon the effective date of any federal law that removes the requirement of the exemption as a condition for participation by the state in the federal food stamp program;

11. Sales of food or food products to or by an organization which:

a. is exempt from taxation pursuant to the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 501(c)(3), and which provides and delivers prepared meals for home consumption to elderly or homebound persons as part of a program commonly known as "Meals on Wheels" or "Mobile Meals", or

b. is exempt from taxation pursuant to the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 501(c)(3), and which receives federal funding pursuant to the Older Americans Act of 1965, as amended, for the purpose of providing nutrition programs for the care and benefit of elderly persons;

12. Sales of tangible personal property or services to or by organizations which are exempt from taxation pursuant to the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 501(c)(3), and which are primarily involved in the collection and distribution of food and other household products to other organizations which are exempt from taxation pursuant to the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 501(c)(3), which facilitate the distribution of such products to the needy, except sales made in the course of business

for profit or savings, competing with other persons engaged in the same or similar business;

13. Sales of food, food products, or clothing to children's homes which are located on church-owned property and are operated by organizations exempt from taxation pursuant to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 501(c)(3);

14. Sales of computers, data processing equipment, related peripherals and telephone, telegraph or telecommunications service and equipment for use in a qualified aircraft maintenance or manufacturing facility. For purposes of this paragraph, "qualified aircraft maintenance or manufacturing facility" means a new or expanding facility primarily engaged in aircraft repair, building or rebuilding whether or not on a factory basis, whose total cost of construction exceeds the sum of Five Million Dollars (\$5,000,000.00) and which employs at least two hundred fifty (250) new full-time-equivalent employees, as certified by the Oklahoma Employment Security Commission, upon completion of the facility. In order to qualify for the exemption provided for by this paragraph, the cost of said items purchased by the qualified aircraft maintenance or manufacturing facility shall equal or exceed the sum of Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00);

15. Sales of tangible personal property consumed or incorporated in the construction or expansion of a qualified aircraft maintenance or manufacturing facility as defined in paragraph 14 of this section. For purposes of this paragraph, sales made to a contractor or subcontractor that has previously entered into a contractual relationship with a qualified aircraft maintenance or manufacturing facility for construction or expansion of such a facility shall be considered sales made to a qualified aircraft maintenance or manufacturing facility;

16. Sales of any interstate telecommunications services which:
- a. entitle the subscriber to inward or outward calling respectively between a station associated with an access line in the local telephone system area or a station directly connected to any interexchange carrier's facilities and telephone or radiotelephone stations in diverse geographical locations specified by the subscriber, or
 - b. entitle the subscriber to private communications services which allow exclusive or priority use of a communications channel or group of channels between exchanges;

17. Sales of railroad track spikes manufactured and sold for use in this state in the construction or repair of railroad tracks, switches, sidings and turnouts;

18. Sales of aircraft and aircraft parts provided such sales occur at a qualified aircraft maintenance facility. As used in this paragraph, "qualified aircraft maintenance facility" means a facility operated by an air common carrier at which there were employed at least two thousand (2,000) full-time-equivalent employees in the preceding year as certified by the Oklahoma Employment Security Commission and which is primarily related to the fabrication, repair, alteration, modification, refurbishing, maintenance, building or rebuilding of commercial aircraft or aircraft parts used in air common carriage. For purposes of this paragraph, "air common carrier" shall also include members of an affiliated group as defined by Section 1504 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 1504; and

19. Sales of machinery and equipment purchased and used by persons and establishments primarily engaged in computer services and data processing:

- a. as defined under Industrial Group Numbers 7372 and 7373 of the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC)

Manual, latest version, which derive at least fifty percent (50%) of their annual gross revenues from the sale of a product or service to an out-of-state buyer or consumer, and

- b. as defined under Industrial Group Number 7374 of the SIC Manual, latest version, which derive at least eighty percent (80%) of their annual gross revenues from the sale of a product or service to an out-of-state buyer or consumer.

Eligibility for the exemption set out in this paragraph shall be established, subject to review by the Tax Commission, by annually filing an affidavit with the Tax Commission stating that the facility so qualifies and such information as required by the Tax Commission. For purposes of determining whether annual gross revenues are derived from sales to out-of-state buyers or consumers, all sales to the federal government shall be considered to be to an out-of-state buyer or consumer;

20. Sales of prosthetic devices to an individual for use by such individual. For purposes of this paragraph, "prosthetic device" means a device which replaces a missing part of the human body and shall include any supplies physically connected to the device; and

21. Sales of tangible personal property or services to a motion picture or television production company to be used or consumed in connection with an eligible production. For purposes of this paragraph, "eligible production" means a television program that will serve as a pilot for or be a segment of an ongoing dramatic or situation comedy series televised on a network or through national syndication or a feature-length motion picture intended for theatrical release or for exhibition on national television by a network or through national syndication.

SECTION 17. AMENDATORY 68 O.S. 1991, Section 2358, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 296, O.S.L. 1996 (68 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 2358), is amended to read as follows:

Section 2358. For all tax years beginning after December 31, 1981, taxable income and adjusted gross income shall be adjusted to arrive at Oklahoma taxable income and Oklahoma adjusted gross income as required by this section.

A. The taxable income of any taxpayer shall be adjusted to arrive at Oklahoma taxable income for corporations and Oklahoma adjusted gross income for individuals, as follows:

1. There shall be added interest income on obligations of any state or political subdivision thereto which is not otherwise exempted pursuant to other laws of this state, to the extent that said interest is not included in taxable income and adjusted gross income.

2. There shall be deducted amounts included in such income that the state is prohibited from taxing because of the provisions of the Federal Constitution, the State Constitution, federal laws or laws of Oklahoma.

3. The amount of any federal net operating loss deduction shall be adjusted as follows:

- a. For carryovers and carrybacks to taxable years beginning before January 1, 1981, the amount of any net operating loss deduction allowed to a taxpayer for federal income tax purposes shall be reduced to an amount which is the same portion thereof as the loss from sources within this state, as determined pursuant to this section and Section 2362 of this title, for the taxable year in which such loss is sustained is of the total loss for such year;
- b. For carryovers and carrybacks to taxable years beginning after December 31, 1980, the amount of any

net operating loss deduction allowed for the taxable year shall be an amount equal to the aggregate of the Oklahoma net operating loss carryovers and carrybacks to such year. Oklahoma net operating losses shall be separately determined by reference to Section 172 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 172, as modified by the Oklahoma Income Tax Act, Section 2351 et seq. of this title, and shall be allowed without regard to the existence of a federal net operating loss. The years to which such losses may be carried shall be determined by reference to Section 172 of the Internal Revenue Code, except that losses which are not actually utilized shall not reduce the carryover; provided, for net operating losses incurred for tax years beginning after December 31, 1992, and before December 31, 1993, the loss carryback shall be for a period of three (3) years; for tax years beginning after December 31, 1993, and before December 31, 1994, the carryback period shall be two (2) years; for tax years beginning after December 31, 1994, and before December 31, 1995, the carryback period shall be one (1) year; and for tax years beginning after December 31, 1995, no net operating loss carryback shall be allowable. For tax years beginning after December 31, 1992, the net operating loss carryforward shall not exceed fifteen (15) years.

4. Items of the following nature shall be allocated as indicated. Allowable deductions attributable to items separately allocable in subparagraphs a, b and c of this paragraph, whether or not such items of income were actually received, shall be allocated on the same basis as those items:

- a. Income from real and tangible personal property, such as rents, oil and mining production or royalties, and gains or losses from sales of such property, shall be allocated in accordance with the situs of such property;
- b. Income from intangible personal property, such as interest, dividends, patent or copyright royalties, and gains or losses from sales of such property, shall be allocated in accordance with the domiciliary situs of the taxpayer, except that:
 - (1) where such property has acquired a nonunitary business or commercial situs apart from the domicile of the taxpayer such income shall be allocated in accordance with such business or commercial situs; a resident trust or resident estate shall be treated as having a separate commercial or business situs insofar as undistributed income is concerned, but shall not be treated as having a separate commercial or business situs insofar as distributed income is concerned,
 - (2) income from such property which is required to be allocated pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 5 of this subsection shall be allocated as herein provided;
- c. Net income or loss from a business activity which is not a part of business carried on within or without the state of a unitary character shall be separately allocated to the state in which such activity is conducted;

- d. In the case of a manufacturing or processing enterprise the business of which in Oklahoma consists solely of marketing its products by:
- (1) sales having a situs without this state, shipped directly to a point from without the state to a purchaser within the state, commonly known as interstate sales,
 - (2) sales of the product stored in public warehouses within the state pursuant to "in transit" tariffs, as prescribed and allowed by the Interstate Commerce Commission, to a purchaser within the state,
 - (3) sales of the product stored in public warehouses within the state where the shipment to such warehouses is not covered by "in transit" tariffs, as prescribed and allowed by the Interstate Commerce Commission, to a purchaser within or without the state,

the Oklahoma net income shall, at the option of the taxpayer, be that portion of the total net income of the taxpayer for federal income tax purposes derived from the manufacture and/or processing and sales everywhere as determined by the ratio of the sales defined in this section made to the purchaser within the state to the total sales everywhere. The term "public warehouse" as used in this subparagraph means a licensed public warehouse, the principal business of which is warehousing merchandise for the public;

- e. In the case of insurance companies, Oklahoma taxable income shall be taxable income of the taxpayer for federal tax purposes, as adjusted for the adjustments provided pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs 1 and 2 of this subsection, apportioned as follows:
- (1) except as otherwise provided by division (2) of this subparagraph, taxable income of an insurance company for a taxable year shall be apportioned to this state by multiplying such income by a fraction, the numerator of which is the direct premiums written for insurance on property or risks in this state, and the denominator of which is the direct premiums written for insurance on property or risks everywhere. For purposes of this subsection, the term "direct premiums written" means the total amount of direct premiums written, assessments and annuity considerations as reported for the taxable year on the annual statement filed by the company with the Oklahoma Insurance Commissioner in the form approved by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or such other form as may be prescribed in lieu thereof,
 - (2) if the principal source of premiums written by an insurance company consists of premiums for reinsurance accepted by it, the taxable income of such company shall be apportioned to this state by multiplying such income by a fraction, the numerator of which is the sum of (a) direct premiums written for insurance on property or risks in this state, plus (b) premiums written for reinsurance accepted in respect of property or risks in this state, and the denominator of which is the sum of (c) direct premiums written for insurance on property or risks everywhere,

plus (d) premiums written for reinsurance accepted in respect of property or risks everywhere. For purposes of this paragraph, premiums written for reinsurance accepted in respect of property or risks in this state, whether or not otherwise determinable, may at the election of the company be determined on the basis of the proportion which premiums written for insurance accepted from companies commercially domiciled in Oklahoma bears to premiums written for reinsurance accepted from all sources, or alternatively in the proportion which the sum of the direct premiums written for insurance on property or risks in this state by each ceding company from which reinsurance is accepted bears to the sum of the total direct premiums written by each such ceding company for the taxable year.

5. The net income or loss remaining after the separate allocation in paragraph 4 of this subsection, being that which is derived from a unitary business enterprise, shall be apportioned to this state on the basis of the arithmetical average of three factors consisting of property, payroll and sales or gross revenue enumerated as subparagraphs a, b and c of this paragraph. Net income or loss as used in this paragraph includes that derived from patent or copyright royalties, purchase discounts, and interest on accounts receivable relating to or arising from a business activity, the income from which is apportioned pursuant to this subsection, including the sale or other disposition of such property and any other property used in the unitary enterprise. Deductions used in computing such net income or loss shall not include taxes based on or measured by income.

- a. The property factor is a fraction, the numerator of which is the average value of the taxpayer's real and tangible personal property owned or rented and used in this state during the tax period and the denominator of which is the average value of all the taxpayer's real and tangible personal property everywhere owned or rented and used during the tax period.
 - (1) Property, the income from which is separately allocated in paragraph 4 of this subsection, shall not be included in determining this fraction. The numerator of the fraction shall include a portion of the investment in transportation and other equipment having no fixed situs, such as rolling stock, buses, trucks and trailers, including machinery and equipment carried thereon, airplanes, salespersons' automobiles and other similar equipment, in the proportion that miles traveled in Oklahoma by such equipment bears to total miles traveled,
 - (2) Property owned by the taxpayer is valued at its original cost. Property rented by the taxpayer is valued at eight times the net annual rental rate. Net annual rental rate is the annual rental rate paid by the taxpayer, less any annual rental rate received by the taxpayer from subrentals,
 - (3) The average value of property shall be determined by averaging the values at the beginning and ending of the tax period but the Tax Commission may require the averaging of monthly values during the tax period if reasonably required to

- reflect properly the average value of the taxpayer's property;
- b. The payroll factor is a fraction, the numerator of which is the total compensation for services rendered in the state during the tax period, and the denominator of which is the total compensation for services rendered everywhere during the tax period. Compensation as used in this subsection means those paid-for services to the extent related to the unitary business but does not include officers' salaries, wages and other compensation.
- (1) In the case of a transportation enterprise, the numerator of the fraction shall include a portion of such expenditure in connection with employees operating equipment over a fixed route, such as railroad employees, airline pilots, or bus drivers, in this state only a part of the time, in the proportion that mileage traveled in Oklahoma bears to total mileage traveled by such employees,
 - (2) In any case the numerator of the fraction shall include a portion of such expenditures in connection with itinerant employees, such as traveling salespersons, in this state only a part of the time, in the proportion that time spent in Oklahoma bears to total time spent in furtherance of the enterprise by such employees;
- c. The sales factor is a fraction, the numerator of which is the total sales or gross revenue of the taxpayer in this state during the tax period, and the denominator of which is the total sales or gross revenue of the taxpayer everywhere during the tax period. Sales as used in this subsection does not include sales or gross revenue which are separately allocated in paragraph 4 of this subsection.
- (1) Sales of tangible personal property have a situs in this state if the property is delivered or shipped to a purchaser other than the United States government, within this state regardless of the FOB point or other conditions of the sale; or the property is shipped from an office, store, warehouse, factory or other place of storage in this state and (a) the purchaser is the United States government or (b) the taxpayer is not doing business in the state of the destination of the shipment.
 - (2) In the case of a railroad or interurban railway enterprise, the numerator of the fraction shall not be less than the allocation of revenues to this state as shown in its annual report to the Oklahoma Corporation Commission.
 - (3) In the case of an airline, truck or bus enterprise or freight car, tank car, refrigerator car or other railroad equipment enterprise, the numerator of the fraction shall include a portion of revenue from interstate transportation in the proportion that interstate mileage traveled in Oklahoma bears to total interstate mileage traveled.
 - (4) In the case of an oil, gasoline or gas pipeline enterprise, the numerator of the fraction shall be either the total of traffic units of the enterprise within Oklahoma or the revenue

allocated to Oklahoma based upon miles moved, at the option of the taxpayer, and the denominator of which shall be the total of traffic units of the enterprise or the revenue of the enterprise everywhere as appropriate to the numerator. A "traffic unit" is hereby defined as the transportation for a distance of one (1) mile of one (1) barrel of oil, one (1) gallon of gasoline or one thousand (1,000) cubic feet of natural or casinghead gas, as the case may be.

- (5) In the case of a telephone or telegraph or other communication enterprise, the numerator of the fraction shall include that portion of the interstate revenue as is allocated pursuant to the accounting procedures prescribed by the Federal Communications Commission; provided that in respect to each corporation or business entity required by the Federal Communications Commission to keep its books and records in accordance with a uniform system of accounts prescribed by such Commission, the intrastate net income shall be determined separately in the manner provided by such uniform system of accounts and only the interstate income shall be subject to allocation pursuant to the provisions of this subsection. Provided, further, that the gross revenue factors shall be those as are determined pursuant to the accounting procedures prescribed by the Federal Communications Commission.

In any case where the use of the arithmetical average of three factors prescribed in this paragraph attributes to Oklahoma a portion of net income of the enterprise out of all appropriate proportion to the property owned and/or business transacted within this state, because of the fact that one or more of the factors so prescribed are not employed to any appreciable extent in furtherance of the enterprise; or because one or more factors not so prescribed are employed to a considerable extent in furtherance of the enterprise; or because of other reasons, the Tax Commission is empowered to permit, after a showing by taxpayer that an excessive portion of net income has been attributed to Oklahoma, or require, when in its judgment an insufficient portion of net income has been attributed to Oklahoma, the elimination, substitution, or use of additional factors, or reduction or increase in the weight of such prescribed factors. Provided, however, that any such variance from such prescribed factors which has the effect of increasing the portion of net income attributable to Oklahoma must not be inherently arbitrary, and application of the recomputed final arithmetical average ratio to the net income of the enterprise must attribute to Oklahoma only a reasonable portion thereof.

6. For calendar years 1997 and 1998, the owner of a new or expanded agricultural commodity processing facility in this state may exclude from Oklahoma taxable income, or in the case of an individual, the Oklahoma adjusted gross income, fifteen percent (15%) of the investment by the owner in the new or expanded agricultural commodity processing facility. For calendar year 1999, and all subsequent years, the percentage, not to exceed fifteen percent (15%), available to the owner of a new or expanded agricultural commodity processing facility in this state claiming the exemption shall be adjusted annually so that the total estimated reduction in tax liability does not exceed One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) annually. The Oklahoma Tax Commission shall promulgate rules for determining the percentage of the investment which each eligible taxpayer may exclude. The exclusion provided by

this paragraph shall be taken in the taxable year when the investment is made. In the event the total reduction in tax liability authorized by this paragraph exceeds One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) in any calendar year, the Oklahoma Tax Commission shall permit any excess over One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) and shall factor such excess into the percentage for subsequent years. Any amount of the exemption permitted to be excluded pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph but not used in any year may be carried forward as an exemption from income pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph for a period not exceeding six (6) years following the year in which the investment was originally made.

For purposes of this paragraph:

- a. "agricultural commodity processing facility" means building, structures, fixtures and improvements used or operated primarily for the processing or production of marketable products from agricultural commodities. The term does not include a facility that provides only, and nothing more than, storage, cleaning, drying or transportation of agricultural commodities, and
- b. "facility" means each part of the facility which is used in a process primarily for:
 - (1) the processing of agricultural commodities, including receiving or storing agricultural commodities,
 - (2) transporting the agricultural commodities or product before, during or after the processing, or
 - (3) packaging or otherwise preparing the product for sale or shipment.

B. The taxable income of any corporation shall be further adjusted to arrive at Oklahoma taxable income, except those corporations electing treatment as provided in subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 1361 et seq., and Section 2365 of this title, deductions pursuant to the provisions of the Accelerated Cost Recovery System as defined and allowed in the Economic Recovery Tax Act of 1981, Public Law 97-34, 26 U.S.C., Section 168, for depreciation of assets placed into service after December 31, 1981, shall not be allowed in calculating Oklahoma taxable income. Such corporations shall be allowed a deduction for depreciation of assets placed into service after December 31, 1981, in accordance with provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 1 et seq., in effect immediately prior to the enactment of the Accelerated Cost Recovery System. The Oklahoma tax basis for all such assets placed into service after December 31, 1981, calculated in this section shall be retained and utilized for all Oklahoma income tax purposes through the final disposition of said assets.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Oklahoma Income Tax Act, Sections 2351 et seq. of this title or of the Internal Revenue Code to the contrary, this subsection shall control calculation of depreciation of assets placed into service after December 31, 1981, and before January 1, 1983.

For assets placed in service and held by a corporation in which accelerated cost recovery system was previously disallowed, an adjustment to taxable income is required in the first taxable year beginning after December 31, 1982, to reconcile the basis of said assets to the basis allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. The purpose of this adjustment is to equalize the basis and allowance for depreciation accounts between that reported to the Internal Revenue Service and that reported to Oklahoma.

C. 1. For taxable years beginning after December 31, 1987, the taxable income of any corporation shall be further adjusted to arrive at Oklahoma taxable income for transfers of technology to

qualified small businesses located in Oklahoma. Such transferor corporation shall be allowed an exemption from taxable income of an amount equal to the amount of royalty payment received as a result of such transfer; provided, however, said amount shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the amount of gross proceeds received by such transferor corporation as a result of the technology transfer. Such exemption shall be allowed for a period not to exceed ten (10) years from the date of receipt of the first royalty payment accruing from such transfer. No exemption may be claimed for transfers of technology to qualified small businesses made prior to January 1, 1988.

2. For purposes of this subsection:

- a. "Qualified small business" means an entity, whether organized as a corporation, partnership, or proprietorship, organized for profit with its principal place of business located within this state and which meets the following criteria:
 - (1) Capitalization of not more than Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$250,000.00),
 - (2) Having at least fifty percent (50%) of its employees and assets located in Oklahoma at the time of the transfer, and
 - (3) Not a subsidiary or affiliate of the transferor corporation;
- b. "Technology" means a proprietary process, formula, pattern, device or compilation of scientific or technical information which is not in the public domain;
- c. "Transferor corporation" means a corporation which is the exclusive and undisputed owner of the technology at the time the transfer is made; and
- d. "Gross proceeds" means the total amount of consideration for the transfer of technology, whether the consideration is in money or otherwise.

D. The Oklahoma adjusted gross income of any individual taxpayers shall be further adjusted as follows to arrive at Oklahoma taxable income:

1.
 - a. In the case of individuals, there shall be added or deducted, as the case may be, the difference necessary to allow personal exemptions of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) in lieu of the personal exemptions allowed by the Internal Revenue Code.
 - b. There shall be allowed an additional exemption of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) for each taxpayer or spouse who is blind at the close of the tax year. For purposes of this subparagraph, an individual is blind only if the central visual acuity of the individual does not exceed 20/200 in the better eye with correcting lenses, or if the visual acuity of the individual is greater than 20/200, but is accompanied by a limitation in the fields of vision such that the widest diameter of the visual field subtends an angle no greater than twenty (20) degrees.
 - c. For taxable years beginning after December 31, 1987, there shall be allowed an additional exemption of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) for each taxpayer or spouse who is sixty-five (65) years of age or older at the close of the tax year based upon the filing status and federal adjusted gross income of the taxpayer. Taxpayers with the following filing status may claim this exemption if the federal adjusted gross income does not exceed:

- (1) Twenty-five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000.00) if married and filing jointly;
 - (2) Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$12,500.00) if married and filing separately;
 - (3) Fifteen Thousand Dollars (\$15,000.00) if single; and
 - (4) Nineteen Thousand Dollars (\$19,000.00) if a qualifying head of household.
- d. For taxable years beginning after December 31, 1990, and beginning before January 1, 1992, there shall be allowed a one-time additional exemption of Four Hundred Dollars (\$400.00) for each taxpayer or spouse who is a member of the National Guard or any reserve unit of the Armed Forces of the United States and who was at any time during such taxable year deployed in active service during a time of war or conflict with an enemy of the United States.

2. In the case of individuals who use the standard deduction in determining taxable income, there shall be added or deducted, as the case may be, the difference necessary to allow a standard deduction in lieu of the standard deduction allowed by the Internal Revenue Code, in an amount equal to the larger of fifteen percent (15%) of the Oklahoma adjusted gross income or One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), but not to exceed Two Thousand Dollars (\$2,000.00), except that in the case of a married individual filing a separate return such deduction shall be the larger of fifteen percent (15%) of such Oklahoma adjusted gross income or Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00), but not to exceed the maximum amount of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00).

3. In the case of resident individuals having adjusted gross income from sources both within and without the state, the itemized or standard deductions and personal exemptions shall be reduced to an amount which is the same portion of the total thereof as Oklahoma adjusted gross income is of adjusted gross income. To the extent itemized deductions include allowable moving expense, proration of moving expense shall not be required or permitted but allowable moving expense shall be fully deductible for those taxpayers moving within or into Oklahoma and no part of moving expense shall be deductible for those taxpayers moving without or out of Oklahoma. All other itemized or standard deductions and personal exemptions shall be subject to proration as provided by law.

4. A resident individual with a physical disability constituting a substantial handicap to employment may deduct from Oklahoma adjusted gross income such expenditures to modify a motor vehicle, home or workplace as are necessary to compensate for his or her handicap. A veteran certified by the Veterans Administration of the federal government as having a service-connected disability shall be conclusively presumed to be an individual with a physical disability constituting a substantial handicap to employment. The Oklahoma Tax Commission shall promulgate rules containing a list of combinations of common disabilities and modifications which may be presumed to qualify for this deduction. The Commission shall prescribe necessary requirements for verification.

5. In any taxable year the first One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$1,500.00) received by any person from the United States as salary or compensation in any form, other than retirement benefits, as a member of any component of the Armed Forces of the United States shall be deducted from taxable income. Whenever the filing of a timely income tax return by a member of the Armed Forces of the United States is made impracticable or impossible of accomplishment by reason of:

- a. absence from the United States, which term includes only the states and the District of Columbia;

b. absence from the State of Oklahoma while on active duty; or
c. confinement in a hospital within the United States for treatment of wounds, injuries or disease,
the time for filing a return and paying an income tax shall be and is hereby extended without incurring liability for interest or penalties, to the fifteenth day of the third month following the month in which:

- (1) Such individual shall return to the United States if the extension is granted pursuant to subparagraph (a) of this paragraph, return to the State of Oklahoma if the extension is granted pursuant to subparagraph (b) of this paragraph or be discharged from such hospital if the extension is granted pursuant to subparagraph (c) of this paragraph; or
- (2) An executor, administrator, or conservator of the estate of the taxpayer is appointed, whichever event occurs the earliest.

Provided, that the Tax Commission may, in its discretion, grant any member of the Armed Forces of the United States an extension of time for filing of income tax returns and payment of income tax without incurring liabilities for interest or penalties. Such extension may be granted only when in the judgment of the Tax Commission a good cause exists therefor and may be for a period in excess of six (6) months. A record of every such extension granted, and the reason therefor, shall be kept.

6. The salary or any other form of compensation, received from the United States by a member of any component of the Armed Forces of the United States, shall be deducted from taxable income during the time in which the person is detained by the enemy in a conflict, is a prisoner of war or is missing in action and not deceased.

7. Notwithstanding anything in the Internal Revenue Code or in the Oklahoma Income Tax Act to the contrary, it is expressly provided that, in the case of resident individuals, amounts received as dividends or distributions of earnings from savings and loan associations or credit unions located in Oklahoma, and interest received on savings accounts and time deposits from such sources or from state and national banks or trust companies located in Oklahoma, shall qualify as dividends for the purpose of the dividend exclusion, and taxable income shall be adjusted accordingly to arrive at Oklahoma taxable income; provided, however, that the dividend, distribution of earnings and/or interest exclusion provided for hereinabove shall not be cumulative to the maximum dividend exclusion allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. Any dividend exclusion already allowed by said Code and reflected in the taxpayer's Oklahoma taxable income together with exclusion allowed herein shall not exceed the total of One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) per individual or Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00) per couple filing a joint return.

8. a. An individual taxpayer, whether resident or nonresident, may deduct an amount equal to the federal income taxes paid by said taxpayer during the taxable year.
- b. Federal taxes as described in subparagraph a of this paragraph shall be deductible by any individual taxpayer, whether resident or nonresident, only to the extent they relate to income subject to taxation pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma Income Tax Act. The maximum amount allowable in the preceding paragraph shall be prorated on the ratio of the Oklahoma adjusted gross income to federal adjusted gross income.

- c. For the purpose of this paragraph, federal income taxes paid shall mean federal income taxes, surtaxes imposed on incomes or excess profits taxes, as though the taxpayer was on the accrual basis.
- d. The provisions of this paragraph shall apply to all taxable years ending after December 31, 1978.

9. Retirement benefits not to exceed Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$5,500.00), which are received by an individual from the civil service of the United States, any component of the Armed Forces of the United States, the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System, the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma, the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System, the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System, the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, the employee retirement systems created by counties pursuant to Sections 951 et seq. of Title 19 of the Oklahoma Statutes, the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges, the Oklahoma Wildlife Conservation Department Retirement Fund, the Oklahoma Employment Security Commission Retirement Plan, or the employee retirement systems created by municipalities pursuant to Sections 48-101 et seq. of Title 11 of the Oklahoma Statutes shall be exempt from taxable income.

10. In taxable years beginning after December 31, 1984, Social Security benefits received by an individual shall be exempt from taxable income, to the extent such benefits are included in the federal adjusted gross income pursuant to the provisions of Section 86 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 86.

11. For taxable years beginning after December 31, 1994, lump-sum distributions from employer plans of deferred compensation, which are not qualified plans within the meaning of Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 401(a), and which are deposited in and accounted for within a separate bank account or brokerage account in a financial institution within this state, shall be excluded from taxable income in the same manner as a qualifying rollover contribution to an individual retirement account within the meaning of Section 408 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 408. Amounts withdrawn from such bank or brokerage account, including any earnings thereon, shall be included in taxable income when withdrawn in the same manner as withdrawals from individual retirement accounts within the meaning of Section 408 of the Internal Revenue Code.

12. In taxable years beginning after December 31, 1995, contributions made to and interest received from a medical savings account established pursuant to Sections 2621 through 2623 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes shall be exempt from taxable income.

13. For taxable years beginning after December 31, 1996, the Oklahoma adjusted gross income of any individual taxpayer who is a swine or poultry producer may be further adjusted for the deduction for depreciation allowed for new construction or expansion costs which may be computed using the same depreciation method elected for federal income tax purposes except that the useful life shall be seven (7) years for purposes of this paragraph. If depreciation is allowed as a deduction in determining the adjusted gross income of an individual, any depreciation calculated and claimed pursuant to this section shall in no event be a duplication of any depreciation allowed or permitted on the federal income tax return of the individual.

14. a. In taxable years beginning after December 31, 1995, nonrecurring adoption expenses paid by a resident individual taxpayer in connection with:
- (1) the adoption of a minor, or
 - (2) a proposed adoption of a minor which did not result in a decreed adoption,

may be deducted from the Oklahoma adjusted gross income.

- b. The deductions for adoptions and proposed adoptions authorized by this paragraph shall not exceed Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) per calendar year.
- c. The Oklahoma Tax Commission shall promulgate rules to implement the provisions of this paragraph which shall contain a specific list of nonrecurring adoption expenses which may be presumed to qualify for the deduction. The Commission shall prescribe necessary requirements for verification.
- d. "Nonrecurring adoption expenses" means adoption fees, court costs, medical expenses, attorney fees and expenses which are directly related to the legal process of adoption of a child including, but not limited to, costs relating to the adoption study, health and psychological examinations, transportation and reasonable costs of lodging and food for the child or adoptive parents which are incurred to complete the adoption process and are not reimbursed by other sources. The term "nonrecurring adoption expenses" shall not include attorney fees incurred for the purpose of litigating a contested adoption, from and after the point of the initiation of the contest, costs associated with physical remodeling, renovation and alteration of the adoptive parents' home or property, except for a special needs child as authorized by the court.

15. In taxable years beginning after December 31, 1996, retirement benefits not to exceed the amounts specified in this paragraph, which are received by an individual sixty-five (65) years of age or older and whose Oklahoma adjusted gross income is Twenty-five Thousand Dollars (\$25,000.00) or less if the filing status is single, head of household, or married filing separate, or Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00) or less if the filing status is married filing joint or qualifying widow, shall be exempt from taxable income. For purposes of this paragraph, "retirement benefits" means the total distributions or withdrawals from the following:

- a. an employee pension benefit plan which satisfies the requirements of Section 401 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 401,
- b. an eligible deferred compensation plan that satisfies the requirements of Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 457,
- c. an individual retirement account, annuity or trust or simplified employee pension that satisfies the requirements of Section 408 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 408,
- d. an employee annuity subject to the provisions of Section 403(a) or (b) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 403(a) or (b),
- e. United States Retirement Bonds which satisfy the requirements of Section 86 of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 86, or
- f. lump-sum distributions from a retirement plan which satisfies the requirements of Section 402(e) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 402(e).

The amount of the exemption provided by this paragraph shall be limited to One Thousand One Hundred Dollars (\$1,100.00) for the 1997 tax year; Two Thousand Two Hundred Dollars (\$2,200.00) for the 1998 tax year; Three Thousand Three Hundred Dollars (\$3,300.00) for the 1999 tax year; Four Thousand Four Hundred Dollars (\$4,400.00) for

the 2000 tax year; and Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$5,500.00) for all subsequent tax years. Any individual who claims the exemption provided for in paragraph 9 of this subsection shall not be permitted to claim a combined total exemption pursuant to this paragraph and paragraph 9 of this subsection in an amount exceeding Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$5,500.00).

SECTION 18. AMENDATORY 74 O.S. 1991, Section 85.7, as last amended by Section 4, Chapter 316, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 85.7), is amended to read as follows:

Section 85.7 A. No acquisition or contract shall be made without the submission of competitive bids by the State Purchasing Director, except as provided in this section.

1. Any acquisition or contract for an amount of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$2,500.00) or less shall be exempted from competitive bidding procedures. Separate contracts or acquisitions for the individual components of a total project or service or split purchasing for the purpose of evading the requirement of competitive bidding shall be deemed a felony. The State Purchasing Director may waive or increase the two-thousand-five-hundred-dollar limit up to, but not to exceed, a contract or purchase price of ten percent (10%) above the open market limit to perfect an otherwise valid acquisition or contract inadvertently exceeding the two-thousand-five-hundred-dollar limit due to administrative error or unforeseeable circumstances. Requests for such waiver or increase shall be promptly submitted upon the discovery of such error or circumstance to the State Purchasing Director in a form prescribed by said Director setting forth the facts. All requests for such waiver or increase in amount, whether granted or denied, shall be reported monthly to the offices of the Governor, President Pro Tempore of the Senate, and Speaker of the House of Representatives.

2. Contracts for master custodian banks or trust companies, investment managers and investment consultants for state retirement systems, the State Insurance Fund, and the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board, the pension fund management consultants of the Oklahoma State Pension Commission, the Commissioners of the Land Office and actuarial, architectural, engineering, legal, or other professional services as such term is defined in Section 803 of Title 18 of the Oklahoma Statutes shall be exempt from competitive bidding procedures. The Department of Central Services shall send a copy of such contracts or a list of such contracts to any member of the House or Senate Appropriations Committee, if requested by the member.

3. Competitive bids shall not be required for any emergency acquisitions or contracts involving Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) or less, when, upon written request of the State Purchasing Director specifying the facts and circumstances giving rise thereto, the Governor certifies in writing the existence of an emergency authorizing the acquisition or contract.

4. Competitive bids for services to alleviate a serious environmental emergency shall not be required if, upon the request of the Chairman of the Corporation Commission and after having examined the facts and circumstances of the case, the Governor certifies in writing the existence of a serious environmental emergency. A serious environmental emergency for the purpose of this section means a situation within the jurisdiction of the Commission:

- a. in which serious damage to the environment will quickly occur if immediate action is not taken, and the damage will be so significant that the urgent need for action outweighs the public policy strongly favoring competitive bids, or

- b. a situation in which human life or safety is in imminent danger or significant property interests are threatened with imminent destruction.

5. Purchases or acquisitions for repairs of equipment and machinery in emergencies, or of livestock through a market agency, dealer, commission house, or livestock auction market bonded or licensed under federal or state law or the purchase or collection of semen or embryos and the placement of embryos into recipient livestock shall not be subject to the competitive bid requirements of this section or any other provisions of the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act.

6. Purchases or acquisitions of human organs and internal prostheses for the Oklahoma Medical Center, shall not be subject to the competitive bid requirements of this section or any other provisions of the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act.

7. Any contract for the restoration of historical sites and museums shall not be subject to the competitive bid requirements of this section or any other provision of the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act. The procedures will be followed except contractor and bid selection will be the prerogative of the Oklahoma Historical Society Board and selection will be based on contractors' documented qualifications and experience.

8. Purchases of postage by state agencies shall be made in accordance with the provisions of Sections 90.1 through 90.4 of this title.

9. Any sole source contract shall not be subject to competitive bidding procedures. Any agency requesting products or services pursuant to a sole source contract shall comply with Section 89 of this title.

10. Contracts for the design, development, communication or implementation of the state employees flexible benefits plan shall not be subject to the requirements of this section; provided, that the Flexible Benefits Advisory Council shall use procedures consistent with the competitive bid requirements of the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act.

- 11. a. Any contract for a service for which the Department of Central Services has approved as qualifying for a fixed and uniform rate shall not be subject to competitive bid procedures.
- b. The Department of Central Services shall establish criteria and guidelines for those services which may be qualified for a fixed and uniform rate.
- c. The exception to competitive bid procedures authorized by this paragraph shall be limited to contracts for those services furnished to persons directly benefiting from such services and shall not be used by any agency to employ consultants or to purchase products.
- d. Any agency desiring to have a service qualified for a fixed and uniform rate shall make a request for such qualification to the Department of Central Services and shall submit any documentation necessary to support such request. The Department of Central Services shall either approve or deny the request. If the Department of Central Services qualifies such services for a fixed and uniform rate, the agency requesting such qualification shall establish a fixed and uniform rate for such service, provided no contracts shall be entered into by the agency until such rate has been approved by the agency in a public hearing. Prior to approval, the proposed rate shall be clearly and separately identified in the agenda of the agency for the hearing and shall be openly and

separately discussed during such hearing. In addition, the agency shall notify the Director of the Department of Central Services of its pending consideration of the proposed rate at least thirty (30) days before the agency is to meet on the proposed rate. Along with such notice, the agency shall deliver to the Department of Central Services a copy of the agenda items concerning the proposed rate with all supporting documentation and materials. The Director of the Department of Central Services shall communicate any observation, reservation, criticism or recommendation to the agency, either in person at the time of the hearing or in writing delivered to the agency before or at the time of the hearing. The Director of the Department of Central Services shall specifically note in such written communications if the Director of the Department of Central Services has determined the rate to be excessive. Any such written communication presented in the absence of the Director of the Department of Central Services shall be presented orally during the public hearing. Whether made in person or in writing any comment made by the Director of the Department of Central Services shall be made a part of the minutes of the hearing in full.

- e. Within two (2) weeks after the convening of the Legislature, the administrative officer of each state agency shall furnish to the Speaker of the House of Representatives, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate and to any member of the House or Senate, if requested by such member, a complete list of all of the types of services paid for by uniform fixed rates, the amount of the rate last approved by the agency for the service, and the number of contracts then in existence for each type of service. Any rate which has been determined to be excessive by the Director of the Department of Central Services shall be specifically identified in such list.
- f. At any time, the Director of the Department of Central Services is authorized to review, suspend, or terminate a contract entered into pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph if the Director of the Department of Central Services determines the contract is not necessary, is excessive, or is not justified.

12. Purchases of or contracts for specifically prescribed nonmedical adaptive technology-related items for individuals with disabilities who are clients of the Department of Rehabilitation Services and which ~~item is~~ are prescribed by a physician, rehabilitation engineer, qualified rehabilitation technician, speech therapist, speech pathologist, occupational therapist, physical therapist or qualified sensory aids specialist and other client goods and services shall not be subject to the competitive bid requirements of this section. The Commission for Rehabilitation Services shall develop standards for the ~~acquisition~~ purchase of such ~~nonmedical adaptive technology-related items~~ goods and services and may elect to utilize Central Purchasing when appropriate. Such standards shall foster economy, short response time, and shall include appropriate safeguards and written records to assure appropriate competition and economical and efficient purchasing and shall be approved by the Director of Central Purchasing.

13. Purchases of or contracts for specifically prescribed nonmedical assistive technology-related items not exceeding Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$2,500.00) for individuals under sixteen (16) years of age who are recipients of Supplemental

Security Income and which are prescribed by a physician, qualified sensory aids specialists or qualified special education instructors shall not be subject to the competitive bid requirements. The Department of Human Services shall develop standards for the acquisition of such nonmedical assistive technology-related items and may elect to utilize Central Purchasing when appropriate. Such standards shall foster economy, short response time, and shall include appropriate safeguards and written records to assure appropriate competition and economical and efficient purchasing and shall be approved by the Director of Central Purchasing.

14. a. Structured settlement agreements entered into by the Attorney General's office in order to settle any lawsuit involving the state, the Legislature, any state board, agency, commission, or any employee or official of the state shall not be subject to the competitive bidding requirements of this section if:
 - (1) prior to entering into any contract for the services of an entity to administer a structured settlement agreement, the Attorney General receives proposals from at least three entities engaged in providing such services, and
 - (2) the selection of a particular entity is made on the basis of the response to the request which is the most economical and provides the most competent service which furthers the best interests of the state.

- b. A list of any such structured settlement agreements entered into by the Attorney General with summary thereon for the previous calendar year shall be submitted to the Speaker of the House of Representatives and the President Pro Tempore of the Senate on January 31 of each year.

15. Purchases available pursuant to a multistate or multigovernmental contract through the Central Purchasing Division, if the terms of the contract are more favorable to or will result in more favorable terms, conditions, accessibility, prices, control, or efficiency for the state than purchasing from a company distributing to state agencies through a statewide contract or other contract shall be exempt from competitive bidding procedures.

B. Acquisitions or contracts shall be awarded to the lowest and best bidder therefor at a specified time and place, which shall be open to the public, with such preference between bidders offering substantially the same products or services at substantially the same prices, as may be set under the authority of Section 85.5 of this title.

C. Bids for professional service contracts shall be evaluated by the State Purchasing Director and the agency contracting for such service. Both cost and technical expertise shall be considered in determining the lowest and best bid. Further, such agency shall present its evaluation and recommendation to the State Purchasing Director. A documented evaluation report containing the evaluations of the State Purchasing Director and the agency contracting for such service shall be completed prior to the awarding of a professional service contract and such report shall be a matter of public record.

D. When requested by the governing body of a state retirement system, the State Insurance Fund or the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board which are authorized to hire investment managers, the Department of Central Services shall assist the governing body of a state retirement system, the Fund or the Board in the process of selecting investment managers. When requested by the Flexible Benefits Advisory Council, the Department of Central Services shall assist the Council in the process of

selecting contracts for the design, development, communication or implementation of the state employees flexible benefits plan.

E. Except as otherwise specifically provided by law, the acquisition of food items or food products by a state public agency from a public trust created pursuant to Sections 176 through 180.56 of Title 60 of the Oklahoma Statutes shall comply with competitive bidding procedures pursuant to the provisions of this section.

SECTION 19. AMENDATORY 74 O.S. 1991, Section 85.12, as last amended by Section 5, Chapter 316, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 85.12), is amended to read as follows:

Section 85.12 A. The provisions of this section shall not be construed to affect any law relating to fiscal or accounting procedure except such as may be directly in conflict herewith; and all claims, warrants and bonds shall be examined, inspected and approved as now provided by law.

B. The following acquisitions shall not be included within the purview of the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act, Section 85.1 et seq. of this title:

1. Food and other products produced by state institutions and agencies;

2. Contracts for construction of new buildings and for the repair, maintenance or modernization of old buildings by state educational institutions included within The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education;

3. The printing or duplication of publications or forms of whatsoever kind or character by state agencies, which service is performed upon their own equipment, by their own employees. In order to be exempt from the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act pursuant to this paragraph, the state agency may only use equipment owned or leased by the agency and may only utilize that equipment for printing services required by the agency in performing duties imposed upon the agency or functions authorized to be performed by the agency. Any use of the equipment by the agency pursuant to an agreement or contract with any other entity resulting in delivery of intermediate or finished products to the entity purchasing or using the products shall be subject to the provisions of the Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act;

4. Acquisitions by institutions of The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education, the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education, or the University Centers subject to the State Regents insofar as such acquisitions relate to textbooks, laboratory supplies, instructional materials and specialized laboratory equipment or acquisitions for the telecommunications network known as OneNet, whether said network is governed or operated by the State Regents or any other state entity assigned responsibility for OneNet;

5. Department of Transportation and Transportation Commission contractual services or right-of-way purchases. Contracts awarded pursuant to bids let by the Transportation Commission for the maintenance or construction of streets, roads, highways, bridges, or underpasses, or any other transportation facilities under the control of the Department of Transportation, the acquisitions of equipment or materials accruing to the Department of Transportation required in Federal-Aid contracts, and contracts for public service type announcements initiated by the Department of Transportation. Contractual services as used herein shall not include advertising or public relations services;

6. Utility services where rates therefor are regulated by a state or federal regulatory commission, or by city ordinance or by an Indian Tribal Council for use by the Department of Corrections only;

7. Acquisition of products and services by the University Hospitals and the University Hospitals Authority. The Authority shall develop standards for the acquisition of products and services

and may elect to utilize Central Purchasing when appropriate. Such standards shall foster economy, short response time, and shall include appropriate safeguards and written records to assure appropriate competition and economical and efficient purchasing and shall be approved by the Director of Central Purchasing;

8. Contracts for custom harvesting by the Department of Corrections for the Department or its institutions;

9. Contracts with private prison contractors which are subject to the contracting procedures of Section 561 of Title 57 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

10. Acquisitions of aircraft by agencies authorized by the Legislature to purchase aircraft;

11. Purchases by the Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority;

12. Grand River Dam Authority;

13. Purchases by rural water, sewer, gas or solid waste management districts created pursuant to Section 1324.1 et seq. of Title 82 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

14. Purchases by the Oklahoma Ordnance Works Authority or Midwestern Oklahoma Development Authority;

15. Contracts entered into by the Oklahoma Industrial Finance Authority for the services of an appraiser or for acquisition of insurance when it is determined by its Board of Directors that an emergency exists and for the services of legal counsel when approved by the Attorney General;

16. Expenditure of monies appropriated to the State Board of Education for the purpose of Local, State-supported Programs and State-supported Programs except monies appropriated for the Administrative and Support Functions of the State Department of Education;

17. Contracts entered into by the State Department of Vocational and Technical Education for the development, revision or updating of vocational curriculum materials and contracts entered into by the State Department of Vocational and Technical Education for training and supportive services that meet the needs of new or expanding industries, or both, contributing to economic growth and development of Oklahoma while maintaining Oklahoma's competitive advantage and flexibility in meeting their needs;

18. Contracts entered into by the Oklahoma Center for the Advancement of Science and Technology for professional services;

19. Contracts entered into by the Oklahoma Department of Commerce pursuant to the provisions of Section 5066.4 of this title;

20. Purchases made by the Oklahoma Historical Society from monies used to administer the White Hair Memorial;

21. Purchases of products available to an agency through a General Services Administration contract or other federal contract if the item is on current state contract and the terms of such contract are more favorable to the agency than the terms of a state contract for the same products as determined by the State Purchasing Director;

22. Contracts for managed health care services entered into by the state entity designated by law or the Department of Human Services, as specified in paragraph 1 of subsection A of Section 1010.3 of Title 56 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

23. Purchases of products by the Forestry Service of the State Department of Agriculture as authorized by the federal General Services Administration through a General Services Administration contract or other federal contract if the item is not on current state contract or the terms of such federal contract are more favorable to the agency than the terms of a state contract for the same products;

24. Purchases amounting to less than that requiring competitive bid pursuant to Section 85.7 of this title. The Director of Central Services shall promulgate rules related to such purchases in excess

of Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$750.00) and not exceeding Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$2,500.00) to ensure competitiveness and fairness in such purchases;

25. Purchases or acquisitions of clothing for clients of the Department of Human Services and purchases and acquisitions of food for group homes operated by the Department of Human Services; ~~and~~

26. Purchases made or contracts entered into by the Oklahoma Energy Resources Board; and

27. Purchases or acquisitions of clothing for juveniles in the custody of the Office of Juvenile Affairs and purchases and acquisitions of food for group homes operated by the Office of Juvenile Affairs.

C. Notwithstanding the exclusions provided herein, any agency or common schools of Oklahoma, any municipality of the state, any rural fire protection district and county officers may, unless the contract with the state specifies otherwise, avail themselves of the provisions of the Oklahoma Central Purchasing contracts and the services of the Purchasing Director. Provided further, however, that any subdivision of government and any rural fire protection district of the state may designate the office of Oklahoma Central Purchasing as its agent for the purchase or procurement of any item or service contracted or available to the state.

D. Further, notwithstanding the exclusions provided herein, the purchasing policies and procedures of the Oklahoma Ordnance Works Authority, the University Hospitals Authority and the Midwestern Oklahoma Development Authority shall be subject to approval by the Director of the Department of Central Services, and said Director shall make periodic audits of the purchasing policies and procedures of the Oklahoma Ordnance Works Authority, the University Hospitals Authority and the Midwestern Oklahoma Development Authority to ensure that said purchasing policies and procedures, as approved, are being followed.

SECTION 20. AMENDATORY 74 O.S. 1991, Section 840.8, as renumbered by Section 54, Chapter 242, O.S.L. 1994, and as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 327, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 840-5.5), is amended to read as follows:

Section 840-5.5 A. The following offices, positions, and personnel shall be in the unclassified service and shall not be placed under the classified service:

1. Persons chosen by popular vote or appointment to fill an elective office, and their employees, except the employees of the Corporation Commission, the State Department of Education and the Department of Labor;

2. Members of boards and commissions, and heads of agencies; also one principal assistant or deputy and one executive secretary for each state agency;

3. All judges, elected or appointed, and their employees;

4. Persons employed with one-time, limited duration, federal or other grant funding that is not continuing or indefinitely renewable. The length of the unclassified employment shall not exceed the period of time for which that specific federal funding is provided. Provided any person unclassified pursuant to this paragraph on April 11, 1995, in a capacity that does not meet the criteria listed in this paragraph may continue to be employed in such status until July 1, 1995;

5. All officers and employees of The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education, State Board of Education and State Department of Vocational and Technical Education;

6. Persons employed in a professional or scientific capacity to make or conduct a temporary and special inquiry, investigation, or examination on behalf of the Legislature or a committee thereof or by authority of the Governor. These appointments and authorizations shall terminate on the first day of the regular legislative session

immediately following the appointment, if not terminated earlier. However, nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the reauthorization and reappointment of any such person;

7. Election officials and employees;

8. Temporary employees employed to work less than one thousand (1,000) hours in any twelve-month period. This category of employees may include persons employed on an intermittent, provisional, seasonal, temporary or emergency basis;

9. Temporary lake patrol officers, regardless of the number of hours worked, who are employed by the Department of Public Safety during the period March 16 through October 31 in any calendar year; provided, the hours worked shall be considered in determining the temporary employee's eligibility for subsequent employment in any other unclassified temporary employment category;

10. Professional trainees only during the prescribed length of their course of training or extension study;

11. Students who are employed on a part-time basis, which shall be seventy-five percent (75%) of a normal forty-hour work week or thirty (30) hours per week, or less, or on a full-time basis if the employment is pursuant to a cooperative education program such as that provided for under Title I IV-D of the Higher Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 1087a-1087c), as amended, and who are regularly enrolled in:

- a. an institution of higher learning within The Oklahoma State System of Higher Education,
- b. an institution of higher learning qualified to become coordinated with said State System of Higher Education. For purposes of this act a student shall be considered a regularly enrolled student if he or she is enrolled in a minimum of five (5) hours of accredited graduate courses or a minimum of ten (10) hours of accredited undergraduate courses, provided, however, the student shall only be required to be enrolled in a minimum of six (6) hours of accredited undergraduate courses during the summer, and such student is regularly attending classes during that semester of employment, or
- c. high school students regularly enrolled in a high school in Oklahoma and regularly attending classes during such time of enrollment;

12. The spouses of personnel who are employed on a part-time basis to assist or work as a relief for their spouses in the Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department;

13. Service substitute attendants who are needed to replace museum and site attendants who are unavoidably absent. Service substitutes may work as part-time or full-time relief for absentees for a period of not more than four (4) weeks per year in the Oklahoma Historical Society sites and museums; such substitutes will not count towards the agency's Full-Time-Equivalent Employee Limit;

14. Employees of either the House of Representatives or the State Senate or the Legislative Service Bureau;

15. Corporation Commission personnel occupying the following offices and positions:

- a. Administrative aides, and executive secretaries to the Commissioners,
- b. Directors of all the divisions, personnel managers and comptrollers,
- c. General Counsel,
- d. Public Utility Division Chief Engineer,
- e. Public Utility Division Chief Accountant,
- f. Public Utility Division Chief Economist,
- g. Public Utility Division Deputy Director, and
- h. Secretary of the Commission;

16. At the option of the employing agency, the Supervisor, Director, or Educational Coordinator in any other state agency having a primary responsibility to coordinate educational programs operated for children in state institutions;

17. Bill Willis Community Mental Health Center personnel occupying the following offices and positions:

- a. Director of Facility,
- b. Deputy Director for Administration,
- c. Clinical Services Director,
- d. Executive Secretary to Director, and
- e. Directors or Heads of Departments or Services;

18. Office of State Finance personnel occupying the following offices and positions:

- a. State Comptroller,
- b. Information Services Divisions Manager,
- c. Network Manager, and
- d. Network Technician;

19. Employees of the Oklahoma Development Finance Authority;

20. Those positions so specified in the annual business plan of the Department of Commerce;

21. Those positions so specified in the annual business plan of the Oklahoma Center for the Advancement of Science and Technology;

22. The following positions and employees of the Oklahoma School of Science and Mathematics:

- a. positions for which the annual salary is Twenty-four Thousand One Hundred Ninety-three Dollars (\$24,193.00) or more, as determined by the Office of Personnel Management, provided no position shall become unclassified because of any change in salary or grade while it is occupied by a classified employee,
- b. positions requiring certification by the State Department of Education, and
- c. positions and employees authorized to be in the unclassified service of the state elsewhere in this section or in subsection B of this section;

23. Office of Personnel Management employees occupying the following positions:

- a. the Carl Albert Internship Program Coordinator, and
- b. one Administrative Assistant;

24. Department of Labor personnel occupying the following offices and positions:

- a. two Deputy Commissioners,
- b. Executive Secretary to the Commissioner,
- c. Chief of Staff, and
- d. two Administrative Assistants;

25. The State Bond Advisor and his employees;

26. The Oklahoma Employment Security Commission employees occupying the following positions:

- a. Associate Director,
- b. Secretary to the Associate Director, and
- c. Assistant to the Executive Director;

27. Oklahoma Human Rights Commission personnel occupying the position of Administrative Assistant;

28. The officers and employees of the State Banking Department;

29. Officers and employees of the University Hospitals Authority except personnel in the state classified service pursuant to Section 3211 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes and members of the University Hospitals Authority Model Personnel System created pursuant to subsection E of Section 3211 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes or as otherwise provided for in Section 3213.2 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

30. Alcoholic Beverage Laws Enforcement Commission employees occupying the three Administrative Service Assistant positions;

31. The Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigation employee occupying the Special Investigator position and one executive secretary in addition to the one authorized pursuant to paragraph 2 of this subsection;

32. The Governor's Representative of the Oklahoma Highway Safety Office of the Oklahoma Department of Public Safety who shall be appointed by the Governor;

33. Oklahoma Department of Transportation employee occupying the position of the Director of the Oklahoma Aeronautics Commission;

34. Commissioners of the Land Office employees occupying the following positions:

- a. Director of the Investments Division,
- b. Assistant Director of the Investments Division, and
- c. one Administrative Assistant;

35. Within the Bureau of Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs Control Commission, the following positions:

- a. two Narcotics Agent positions, provided, authorization for such positions shall be terminated when federal support for the positions by the Gang Intelligence/Enforcement Program is discontinued, and
- b. one executive secretary in addition to the one authorized pursuant to paragraph 2 of this subsection;

36. A maximum of one hundred (100) positions, within full-time-employee limitations of the Oklahoma Military Department, to work in any of the Department of Defense directed youth programs or the State of Oklahoma Juvenile Justice Youth Programs. The authorization for such positions shall be terminated if the federal funding for the positions is discontinued;

37. Within the Oklahoma Commission on Children and Youth the following unclassified positions:

- a. one Oversight Specialist and one Community Development Planner,
- b. one State Plan Grant Coordinator, provided authorization for the position shall be terminated when federal support for the position by the United States Department of Education Early Intervention Program is discontinued, and
- c. one executive secretary in addition to the one authorized pursuant to paragraph 2 of this subsection;

38. The following positions and employees of the Department of Central Services:

- a. one Executive Secretary in addition to the Executive Secretary authorized by paragraph 2 of this subsection,
- b. the Director of Central Purchasing, and
- c. one Alternate Fuels Administrator;

39. One Environmental Specialist I within the Water Resources Board;

40. J.D. McCarty Center for Children with Developmental Disabilities personnel occupying the following offices and positions:

- a. Physical Therapists,
- b. Physical Therapist Assistants,
- c. Occupational Therapists,
- d. Certified Occupational Therapist Aides, and
- e. Speech Pathologists;

41. The Development Officer within the Oklahoma Historical Society;

42. State Department of Agriculture personnel occupying the following positions:

- a. one Executive Secretary in addition to the Executive Secretary authorized by paragraph 2 of this subsection,

- b. Agricultural Marketing Coordinator III, and
- c. temporary fire suppression personnel, regardless of the number of hours worked, who are employed by the State Department of Agriculture during the period of October 1 through May 31 in any fiscal year; provided, however, notwithstanding the provisions of any other section of law, the hours worked by such employees shall not entitle such employees to any benefits received by full-time employees; and

43. The Contracts Administrator within the Oklahoma State Employees Benefits Council.

B. If an agency has the authority to employ personnel in the following offices and positions, the appointing authority shall have the discretion to appoint personnel to the unclassified service:

- 1. Licensed medical doctors, osteopathic physicians, dentists, and psychologists;
- 2. Certified public accountants;
- 3. Licensed attorneys; and
- 4. Licensed veterinarians.

C. Effective July 1, 1996, authorization for unclassified offices, positions, or personnel contained in a bill or joint resolution shall terminate June 30 of the ensuing fiscal year after the authorization unless the authorization is codified in the Oklahoma Statutes or the termination is otherwise provided in the legislation.

SECTION 21. AMENDATORY 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1306, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 253, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1306), is amended to read as follows:

Section 1306. ~~(1)~~ The State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board shall administer and manage the group insurance plans and the flexible benefits plan and, subject to the provisions of the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act, Section 1301 et seq. and the State Employees Flexible Benefits Act, Section 1341 et seq. of this title, shall have the following powers and duties:

~~(a)~~ 1. The preparation of specifications for such insurance plans as the Board may be directed to offer;

~~(b)~~ 2. The authority and duty to request bids through the Purchasing Division of the Department of Central Services for a contract to be the claims administrator for all or any part of such insurance and benefit plans as the Board may be directed to offer;

~~(c)~~ 3. The determination of the methods of claims administration under such insurance and benefit plans as the Board may be directed to offer;

~~(d)~~ 4. The determination of the eligibility of employees and their dependents to participate in each of the Group Insurance Plans and in such other insurance and benefit plans as the Board may be directed to offer and the eligibility of employees other than education employees to participate in the Life Insurance Plan provided that evidence of insurability shall not be a requirement in determining an employee's initial eligibility;

~~(e)~~ 5. The determination of the amount of employee payroll deductions and the responsibility of establishing the procedure by which such deduction shall be made;

~~(f)~~ 6. The establishment of a grievance procedure by which a three-member grievance panel shall act as an appeals body for complaints by insured employees regarding the allowance and payment of claims, eligibility, and other matters. Except for grievances settled to the satisfaction of both parties prior to a hearing, any person who requests in writing a hearing before the grievance panel shall receive a hearing before the panel. The grievance procedure provided by this paragraph shall be the exclusive remedy available to insured employees having complaints against the insurer. Such

grievance procedure shall be subject to the Oklahoma Administrative Procedures Act, Section 250 et seq. of Title 75 of the Oklahoma Statutes including provisions thereof for review of agency decisions by the district court. The grievance panel shall schedule a hearing regarding the allowance and payment of claims, eligibility and other matters within sixty (60) days from the date the grievance panel receives a written request for a hearing unless the panel orders a continuance for good cause shown. Upon written request by the insured employee to the grievance panel and received not less than ten (10) days before the hearing date, the grievance panel shall cause a full stenographic record of the proceedings to be made by a competent court reporter at the insured employee's expense;

~~(g)~~ 7. The continuing study of the operation of such insurance and benefit plans as the Board may be directed to offer including such matters as gross and net costs, administrative costs, benefits, utilization of benefits, and claims administration;

~~(h)~~ 8. The administration of the Health, Dental and Life Insurance Reserve Fund or Funds, the Flexible Benefits Revolving Fund and the Education Employees Group Insurance Reserve Fund;

~~(i)~~ 9. The auditing of the claims paid pursuant to the provisions of the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act, the State Employees Flexible Benefits Act and the State Employees Disability Program Act;

~~(j)~~ ~~(1)~~

10. a. To select and contract with federally qualified Health Maintenance Organizations under the provisions of 42 U.S.C., Section 300e et seq. or with Health Maintenance Organizations licensed by the Department of Health pursuant to Sections 2501 through 2510 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes for consideration by employees as an alternative to the state self-insured health plan, and to transfer to the HMOs such funds as may be approved for an employee electing HMO alternative services.

b. HMO contracts shall provide for a risk adjustment factor for adverse selection, that may occur as determined by the Board, based on generally accepted actuarial principles.

c. Effective for the plan year beginning July 1, 1997, and for each year thereafter, in setting health insurance premiums for active employees and for retirees under sixty-five (65) years of age, HMOs, self-insured organizations and prepaid plans shall set the monthly premium for active employees at a maximum of Ninety Dollars (\$90.00) less than the monthly premium for retirees under sixty-five (65) years of age;

~~(k)~~ 11. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1992, to assess and collect a four percent (4%) fee from such contracted HMOs to offset the costs of administration, and to appropriate and pay to the Benefits Council Administration Fund an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of said fee within ten (10) days of collection;

~~(l)~~ 12. To contract for re-insurance, catastrophic insurance, or any other type of insurance deemed necessary by the Board. Provided, however, that the Board shall not offer a health plan which is owned or operated by the state and which utilizes a capitated payment plan for providers which uses a primary care physician as a gatekeeper to any specialty care provided by physician-specialists, unless specifically authorized by the Legislature;

~~(m)~~ 13. The Board, pursuant to the provisions of ~~Sections 301 through 325~~ Section 250 et seq. of Title 75 of the Oklahoma Statutes, shall adopt such rules and regulations consistent with the

provisions of the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act as it deems necessary to carry out its statutory duties and responsibilities;

~~(n)~~ 14. The Board shall contract for claims administration services with a private insurance carrier or a company experienced in claims administration of any insurance that the Board may be directed to offer. No contract for claims administration services shall be made unless such contract has been offered for bids through the Purchasing Division of the Department of Central Services. The Board shall contract with a private insurance carrier or other experienced claims administrator to process claims with software that is normally used for its customers;

~~(o)~~ 15. The Board shall contract for utilization review services with a company experienced in utilization review, data base evaluation, market research, and planning and performance of the health insurance plan;

~~(p)~~ 16. The Board shall approve the amount of employee premiums and dependent premiums for such insurance plans as the Board shall be directed to offer for each fiscal year no later than March 1 of the previous fiscal year. The Board shall submit notice of the amount of employee premiums and dependent premiums along with an actuarial projection of the upcoming fiscal year's enrollment, employee contributions, employer contributions, investment earnings, paid claims, internal expenses, external expenses and changes in liabilities to the Director of the Office of State Finance and the Director of the Legislative Service Bureau no later than March 1 of the previous fiscal year.

Effective for the plan year beginning July 1, 1997, and for each year thereafter, in setting health insurance premiums for active employees and retirees under sixty-five (65) years of age, the Board shall set the monthly premium for active employees at a maximum of Ninety Dollars (\$90.00) less than the monthly premium for retirees under sixty-five (65) years of age;

~~(q)~~ 17. Before December 1 of each year the Board shall submit to the Director of the Office of State Finance a report outlining the financial condition for the previous fiscal year of all insurance plans offered by the Board. The report shall include a complete explanation of all reserve funds and the actuarial projections on the need for such reserves. The report shall include and disclose an estimate of the future trend of medical costs, the impact from HMO enrollment, antiselection, changes in law, and other contingencies that could impact the financial status of the plan. The Director of the Office of State Finance shall make written comment on the report and shall provide such comment, along with the report submitted by the Board, to the Governor, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of Representatives and the Chairman of the Oklahoma State Employees Benefits Council by January 15;

~~(r)~~ 18. The Board shall establish a prescription drug card network for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1990;

~~(s)~~ 19. The Board shall have the authority to intercept monies owing to plan participants from other state agencies, when those participants in turn, owe money to the Board. The Board shall be required to adopt rules and regulations ensuring the participants due process of law;

~~(t)~~ 20. The Board is authorized to make available to eligible employees supplemental health care benefit plans to include but not be limited to long-term care, deductible reduction plans and employee co-payment reinsurance. Premiums for said plans shall be actuarially based and the cost for such supplemental plans shall be paid by the employee; and

~~(u)~~ 21. There is hereby created as a joint committee of the State Legislature, the Joint Liaison Committee on State and

Education Employees Group Insurance Benefits, which Joint Committee shall consist of three members of the Senate to be appointed by the President Pro Tempore thereof and three members of the House of Representatives to be appointed by the Speaker thereof. The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Joint Committee shall be appointed from the membership thereof by the President Pro Tempore of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives, respectively, one of whom shall be a member of the Senate and the other shall be a member of the House of Representatives. At the beginning of the first regular session of each Legislature, starting in 1991, the Chairman shall be from the Senate; thereafter the chairmanship shall alternate every two (2) years between the Senate and the House of Representatives.

The Joint Liaison Committee on State and Education Employees Group Insurance Benefits shall function as a committee of the State Legislature when the Legislature is in session and when the Legislature is not in session. Each appointed member of said committee shall serve until his or her successor is appointed.

The Joint Liaison Committee on State and Education Employees Group Insurance ~~Benefit~~ Benefits shall serve as a liaison with the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board regarding advice, guidance, policy, management, operations, plans, programs and fiscal needs of said Board. Said Board shall not be bound by any action of the Joint Committee.

~~(v) For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1993, certain duties and responsibilities of the Board shall be transferred to the Oklahoma State Employees Benefits Council pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma State Employees Benefits Act. During the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1992, the Board shall cease activities related to the implementation of said transferred duties and responsibilities for the next fiscal year and implement all reasonable actions to ensure the effective and efficient transfer of said duties and responsibilities to the Oklahoma State Employees Benefits Council.~~

SECTION 22. AMENDATORY 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1316.2, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 355, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1316.2), is amended to read as follows:

Section 1316.2 (1) Any employee other than an education employee who retires pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System or who ~~is employed with a qualifying employer prior to July 1, 1990, and terminates service with~~ has a vested benefit pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System may continue in force the health and dental insurance benefits authorized by the provisions of the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act, ~~Section 1301 et seq. of this title,~~ if such election to continue in force is made within thirty (30) days from the date of termination of service. Health insurance benefits offered pursuant to this section shall include the state indemnity plan, managed care plans offered in alternative to the state indemnity plan, Medicare supplements offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board which shall include prescription drug coverage, and Medicare risk-sharing contracts offered in alternative to the Board's Medicare supplement. Provided, all Medicare risk-sharing contracts shall be subject to a risk adjustment factor, based on generally accepted actuarial principals for adverse selection which may occur. ~~All persons other than an education employee who commence employment with a qualifying employer on or after July 1, 1990, must have a total of at least fifteen (15) years of credited service with a qualifying employer before they may continue to participate in the health and dental insurance plan following termination of employment. For those employees other than education employees who retired or terminated service with a vested benefit~~

~~pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System or the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System prior to October 1, 1988, the election shall be made prior to October 1, 1989. For those employees other than education employees who retired or terminated service with a vested benefit pursuant to the provisions of the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges prior to July 1, 1991, the election shall be made prior to October 1, 1991. Health and dental insurance coverage may not be reinstated at a later time if the election to continue in force is declined. Such vested Vested employees other than education employees who have terminated service and are not receiving pension benefits and effective July 1, 1996, nonvested persons who have terminated service with more than eight (8) years of participating service with a participating employer, who within thirty (30) days from the date of termination elect to continue such coverage, shall pay ~~up to~~ the full cost of said insurance premium at the rate and pursuant to the terms and conditions established by the Board. Provided also, any employee other than an education employee who commences employment with a participating employer on or after September 1, 1991, who terminates service with such employer on or after July 1, 1996, but who otherwise has insufficient years of service to retire or terminate service with a vested benefit pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System or to elect to continue coverage as a nonvested employee as provided in this section, but who, immediately prior to employment with the participating employer was covered as a dependent on the health and dental insurance policy of a spouse who was an active employee other than an education employee, may count as part of his or her credited service for the purpose of determining eligibility to elect to continue coverage under this section, the time during which said terminating employee was covered as such a dependent.~~

(2) A retired employee other than an education employee who is receiving benefits from the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System after September 30, 1988, is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is not otherwise eligible for Medicare and pursuant to subsection (1) of this section elects to continue the health insurance plan shall pay the premium rate for the health insurance minus an amount equal to the premium rate of the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board or Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00), whichever is less, which shall be paid by the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section.

(3) A retired employee other than an education employee who is receiving benefits from the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System after September 30, 1988, is sixty-five (65) years of age or older or who is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is eligible for Medicare and pursuant to subsection (1) of this section elects to continue the health insurance plan and elects coverage under the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board shall have Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00), or the premium rate of the Medicare supplement, whichever is less, paid by the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section. If the amount paid by the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System does not cover the full cost of the Medicare supplement, the retired employee shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired employee wants to continue coverage. If such retiree elects coverage under any Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retiree shall have Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00) or the premium rate of the Medicare risk-sharing contract selected by the retiree, whichever is less, paid by the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System to the

Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section. If the amount paid by the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System does not cover the full cost of the Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retired employee shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired employee wants to continue coverage.

(4) A retired employee other than an education employee who is receiving benefits from the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System after September 30, 1988, is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is not otherwise eligible for Medicare and pursuant to subsection (1) of this section elects to continue the health insurance plan shall pay the premium rate for the health insurance minus an amount equal to the premium rate of the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board or Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00), whichever is less, which shall be paid by the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section.

(5) A retired employee other than an education employee who is receiving benefits from the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System after September 30, 1988, is sixty-five (65) years of age or older or who is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is eligible for Medicare and pursuant to subsection (1) of this section elects to continue the health insurance plan and elects coverage under the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board shall have Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00), or the premium rate of the Medicare supplement, whichever is less, paid by the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section. If the amount paid by the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System does not cover the full cost of the Medicare supplement, the retired employee shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired employee wants to continue coverage. If such retiree elects coverage under any Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retiree shall have Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00) or the premium rate of the Medicare risk-sharing contract selected by the retiree, whichever is less, paid by the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section. If the amount paid by the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System does not cover the full cost of the Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retired employee shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired employee wants to continue coverage.

(6) A retired employee other than an education employee who is receiving benefits from the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges after September 30, 1988, is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is not otherwise eligible for Medicare and pursuant to subsection (1) of this section elects to continue the health insurance plan shall pay the premium rate for the health insurance minus an amount equal to the premium rate of the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board or Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00), whichever is less, which shall be paid by the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section.

(7) A retired employee other than an education employee who is receiving benefits from the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges after September 30, 1988, is sixty-five (65) years of age or older or who is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is eligible for Medicare and pursuant to subsection (1) of this section elects to continue the health insurance plan and elects coverage under the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board shall have Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00), or the premium rate of the Medicare supplement, whichever is less, paid by the Uniform Retirement System for

Justices and Judges to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section. If the amount paid by the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges does not cover the full cost of the Medicare supplement, the retired employee shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired employee wants to continue coverage. If such retiree elects coverage under any Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retiree shall have Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00) or the premium rate of the Medicare risk-sharing contract selected by the retiree, whichever is less, paid by the Uniform Retirement System for the Justices and Judges to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (9) of this section. If the amount paid by the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges does not cover the full cost of the Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retired employee shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired employee wants to continue coverage.

(8) Dependents of a deceased employee other than an education employee who was on active work status or on a disability leave at the time of death or of a participating retirant or of any person who has elected to receive a vested benefit under the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System, the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges or the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System may continue the health and dental insurance benefits in force provided said dependents pay the full cost of such insurance and they were covered as eligible dependents at the time of such death and such election is made within thirty (30) days of date of death. The eligibility for said benefits shall terminate for the surviving spouse when said spouse remarries or becomes eligible for another group health insurance plan. The eligibility for said benefits shall terminate for the surviving children when said children cease to qualify as dependents.

(9) The amounts required to be paid by the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System, the Uniform Retirement System for Justices and Judges and the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement System pursuant to this section shall be forwarded no later than the tenth day of each month following the month for which payment is due by the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees or the Oklahoma Law Enforcement Retirement Board to the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board for deposit in the Health, Dental and Life Insurance Reserve Fund.

SECTION 23. AMENDATORY 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1316.3, as last amended by Section 3, Chapter 355, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1316.3), is amended to read as follows:

Section 1316.3 (1) Any person who retires pursuant to the provisions of the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma or who ~~is employed with a qualifying employer prior to July 1, 1990, and terminates service with~~ has a vested benefit, pursuant to the provisions of the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma may continue in force the health and dental insurance benefits authorized by the provisions of the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act or may begin the health and dental insurance coverage if the education entity of the person is not a participant in the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act or if the person did not participate when the education entity of the person participated in the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act if such election to continue in force or begin is made within thirty (30) days from the date of termination of service. Health insurance benefits offered pursuant to this section shall include the state indemnity plan, managed care plans offered in alternative to the state indemnity plan, Medicare supplements offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board which shall include prescription drug coverage, and Medicare risk-sharing contracts offered in alternative to the Board's Medicare supplement. Provided, all Medicare risk-sharing contracts shall be subject to a

risk adjustment factor, based on generally accepted actuarial principals for adverse selection which may occur. ~~All persons who are members or are eligible to be members of the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma and who commence employment with a qualifying employer on or after July 1, 1990, must have a total of at least fifteen (15) years of credited service with a qualifying employer before they may continue to participate in the health and dental insurance plan following termination of employment. For those persons who retired or terminated service with a vested benefit from the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma prior to October 1, 1988, the election shall be made prior to October 1, 1989.~~ Except as provided in subsection E of Sections 5-117.5 and 14-108.1 of Title 70 of the Oklahoma Statutes, health and dental insurance coverage may not be reinstated at a later time if the election to continue in force or begin coverage is declined. ~~Such vested~~ Vested persons who have terminated service and are not receiving ~~pension~~ benefits and effective July 1, 1996, nonvested persons who have terminated service with more than ten (10) years of participating service with a qualifying employer, who within thirty (30) days from the date of termination, elect to continue such coverage, shall pay ~~up to~~ the full cost of said insurance premium at the rate and pursuant to the terms and conditions established by the Board.

(2) (a) A retired person who is receiving benefits from the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma after September 30, 1988, is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is not otherwise eligible for Medicare and pursuant to subsection (1) of this section elects to begin or to continue the health insurance plan shall pay the premium rate for the health insurance minus an amount equal to the premium rate of the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board or the amount determined pursuant to subsection (4) of this section, whichever is less, which shall be paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (8) of this section.

(b) A retired person who is receiving benefits from the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma after June 30, 1993, is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is not otherwise eligible for Medicare and participates in a health insurance plan provided by a participating education employer of the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma other than a health insurance plan offered pursuant to the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act or an alternative health plan offered pursuant to the Oklahoma State Employees Benefits Act shall pay the premium rate for the health insurance minus an amount equal to the premium rate of the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board or the amount determined pursuant to subsection (4) of this section, whichever is less, which shall be paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma to said education employer that provides the health insurance plan to said retired person.

(3) (a) A retired person who is receiving benefits from the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma after September 30, 1988, made contributions to the system and is sixty-five (65) years of age or older, or who is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is eligible for Medicare and is a participant in the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act and elects coverage under the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board, shall have the amount determined pursuant to subsection (4) of this section, or the premium rate of the Medicare supplement, whichever is less, paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (8) of this section. If the amount paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma does not cover the full cost

of the Medicare supplement, the retired person shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired person wants to continue the coverage. If such retiree elects coverage under any Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retiree shall have the amount determined pursuant to subsection (4) of this section or the premium rate of the Medicare risk-sharing contract selected by the retiree, whichever is less, paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (8) of this section. If the amount paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma does not cover the full cost of the Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retired employee shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired employee wants to continue coverage.

(b) A retired person who is receiving benefits from the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma after June 30, 1993, made contributions to the system and is sixty-five (65) years of age or older, or who is under sixty-five (65) years of age and is eligible for Medicare and participates in a health insurance plan provided by a participating education employer of the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma other than a health insurance plan offered pursuant to the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act or an alternative health plan offered pursuant to the Oklahoma State Employees Benefits Act and elects coverage under the Medicare supplement offered by the Oklahoma State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board, shall have the amount determined pursuant to subsection (4) of this section, or the premium rate of the Medicare supplement, whichever is less, paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma to the education employer that provides the health insurance plan to said retired person. If the amount paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma does not cover the full cost of the Medicare supplement, the retired person shall pay to said employer the remaining amount if the retired person wants to continue the coverage. If such retiree elects coverage under any Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retiree shall have the amount determined pursuant to subsection (4) of this section or the premium rate of the Medicare risk-sharing contract selected by the retiree, whichever is less, paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma to the Board in the manner specified in subsection (8) of this section. If the amount paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma does not cover the full cost of the Medicare risk-sharing contract, the retired employee shall pay to the Board the remaining amount if the retired employee wants to continue coverage.

(4) Beginning July 1, 1993, the maximum benefit payable by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma on behalf of a retired person toward said person's monthly premium for health insurance shall be determined in accordance with the following schedule:

	LESS THAN	LESS THAN 25 YEARS BUT GREATER THAN	GREATER THAN
24.99 AVERAGE SALARY USED FOR DETERMINING RETIREMENT ALLOWANCE	15 YEARS OF CREDITABLE CREDITABLE SERVICE	14.99 YEARS OF CREDITABLE SERVICE	YEARS OF SERVICE
Less than \$20,000.00	\$73.00	\$74.00	\$75.00
Less than \$30,000.00 but greater than \$19,999.99	\$72.00	\$73.00	\$74.00
Less than \$40,000.00 but greater than \$29,999.99	\$71.00	\$72.00	\$73.00
\$40,000.00 or greater	\$70.00	\$71.00	\$72.00

(5) If a person retires and begins to receive benefits from the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma or terminates service and has a vested benefit with the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma, the person may elect, in the manner provided in subsection (1) of this section, to participate in the dental insurance plan offered through the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act. The person shall pay the full cost of the dental insurance.

(6) Those persons who are receiving benefits from the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma and have health insurance coverage which on the operative date of this section is being paid by the education entity from which the person retired shall make the election required in subsection (1) of this section within thirty (30) days of the termination of said health insurance coverage. The person making the election shall give the Board certified documentation satisfactory to the Board of the termination date of the other health insurance coverage.

(7) Dependents of a deceased education employee who was on active work status or on a disability leave at the time of death or of a participating retirant or of any person who has elected to receive a vested benefit under the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma may continue the health and dental insurance benefits in force provided said dependents pay the full cost of such insurance and they were covered as eligible dependents at the time of such death and such election is made within thirty (30) days of date of death. The eligibility for said benefits shall terminate for the surviving spouse when said spouse remarries or becomes eligible for another group health insurance plan. The eligibility for said benefits shall terminate for the surviving children when said children cease to qualify as dependents.

(8) The amounts required to be paid by the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma pursuant to this section shall be forwarded no later than the tenth day of each month following the month for which payment is due by the Board of Trustees of the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma to the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board for deposit in the Education Employees Group Insurance Reserve Fund.

(9) Notwithstanding any provision in this section to the contrary, any person who retires pursuant to the provisions of the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma after June 30, 1995, or terminates service with a vested benefit, pursuant to the provisions of the Teachers' Retirement System of Oklahoma after June 30, 1995, may participate in the health and dental plans authorized by the provisions of the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act only if said person continues to participate in said insurance plans offered by the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Board for a period of at least three (3) consecutive years immediately prior to retirement or termination of service, or the education employer from which the person either retires or terminates service with a vested benefit obtains health and dental insurance coverage as provided for in the State and Education Employees Group Insurance Act.

SECTION 24. AMENDATORY 85 O.S. 1991, Section 139, as last amended by Section 9, Chapter 363, O.S.L. 1996 (85 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 139), is amended to read as follows:

Section 139. The entire expenses of administering "The State Insurance Fund" shall be paid out of such fund upon warrants issued by the State Treasurer against claims filed as prescribed by law with the Director of State Finance for approval and payment. On or before the first day of June of each year, or as soon thereafter as possible, there shall be submitted to the Board of Managers of the State Insurance Fund, for approval, an estimated budget of expenses for the succeeding fiscal year. The State Insurance Fund

Commissioner may not expend from the funds belonging to the State Insurance Fund for purposes of administering any sum in excess of the amount specified in such budget for any item of expense therein set forth unless such expenditure is authorized by the Board of Managers of the State Insurance Fund. In no event shall the entire expenses of administration of the State Insurance Fund, as authorized for the entire year, exceed twenty percent (20%) of the earned premiums of ~~said~~ the year. The Board of Managers may use present value discounting at a rate of four percent (4%) for computing reserves. The Board of Managers shall cause to be made and completed within ninety (90) days after the end of each calendar year, an audit of the books of account and financial records of the fund for such calendar year, such audit to be made by an independent certified public accountant, a licensed public accountant, a firm of certified public accountants, or an accounting firm or individual holding a permit to practice accounting in this state. The audit shall be filed with the Director of State Finance in accordance with the requirements set forth for financial statement audits in Section 212A of Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

The Fund shall submit to the State Insurance Commissioner an annual financial statement in the same manner as a domestic insurance carrier. The Insurance Commissioner may audit the State Insurance Fund in the same manner as a domestic insurance company if an audit does not conflict with any specific provision contained herein. The State Insurance Fund Commissioner shall provide a copy of the annual financial statement to the Governor and State Insurance Fund Board of Managers.

SECTION 25. AMENDATORY 22 O.S. 1991, Section 1105, as amended by Section 4, Chapter 297, O.S.L. 1995 (22 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1105), is amended to read as follows:

Section 1105. A. Except as otherwise provided by this section, upon the allowance of bail and the execution of the requisite recognizance, bond, or undertaking, to the state, the magistrate, judge, or court, shall, if the defendant is in custody, make and sign an order for discharge ~~of the defendant and, upon the delivery of the order to the proper officer, the defendant must be discharged.~~ The court, in its discretion, may prescribe by court rule the conditions under which the court clerk or deputy court clerk, or the sheriff or deputy sheriff, may prepare and execute an order of release on behalf of the court.

B. No police officer or sheriff may release a person arrested for a violation of an ex parte or final protective order as provided in Sections 60.2 and 60.3 of this title, or arrested for an act constituting domestic abuse, stalking or harassment as defined by Section 60.1 of this title without the violator appearing before a magistrate, judge or court. The magistrate, judge or court shall determine bond and other conditions of release as necessary for the protection of the alleged victim.

SECTION 26. REPEALER 10 O.S. 1991, Section 1115.2, as renumbered by Section 199, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1995, and as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 212, O.S.L. 1996 (10 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7003-5.4), 10 O.S. 1991, Section 1102, as renumbered by Section 199, Chapter 352, O.S.L. 1995, and as last amended by Section 19, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996 (10 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7303-1.2), 38 O.S. 1991, Section 28, as last amended by Section 17, Chapter 97, O.S.L. 1996 (38 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 28), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-101, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 203, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-101), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-103, as last amended by Section 38, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-103), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 6-105, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 203, O.S.L. 1996, and Section 39, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 6-105), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 156, as last amended by Section 1,

Chapter 130, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 156), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 583, as last amended by Section 8, Chapter 249, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 583), 47 O.S. 1991, Section 754, as last amended by Section 4, Chapter 199, O.S.L. 1996 (47 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 754), 51 O.S. 1991, Section 24A.1, as amended by Section 1, Chapter 209, O.S.L. 1996 (51 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 24A.1), Section 2, Chapter 257, O.S.L. 1992, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 84, O.S.L. 1996 (52 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 288.2), 59 O.S. 1991, Section 567.3a, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 288, O.S.L. 1996 (59 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 567.3a), 62 O.S. 1991, Section 7.2, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 30, O.S.L. 1996 (62 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 7.2), 62 O.S. 1991, Section 41.21, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 204, O.S.L. 1996 (62 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 41.21), 63 O.S. 1991, Section 2-101, as last amended by Section 9, Chapter 186, O.S.L. 1996 (63 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 2-101), Section 3, Chapter 263, O.S.L. 1995, as amended by Section 5, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1996 (63 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 3224), 68 O.S. 1991, Section 1357, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 289, O.S.L. 1996 (68 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1357), 68 O.S. 1991, Section 2358, as last amended by Section 1, Chapter 216, O.S.L. 1996, and Section 1, Chapter 217, O.S.L. 1996 (68 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 2358), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 85.7, as last amended by Section 6, Chapter 288, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 85.7), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 85.12, as last amended by Section 46, Chapter 247, O.S.L. 1996, and Section 7, Chapter 288, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 85.12), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 840.8, as renumbered by Section 54, Chapter 242, O.S.L. 1994, and as last amended by Section 8, Chapter 321, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 840-5.5), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1306, as last amended by Section 2, Chapter 139, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1306), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1316.2, as amended by Section 2, Chapter 338, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1316.2), 74 O.S. 1991, Section 1316.3, as last amended by Section 3, Chapter 338, O.S.L. 1996 (74 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1316.3), 85 O.S. 1991, Section 139, as last amended by Section 21, Chapter 290, O.S.L. 1996 (85 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 139), and 22 O.S. 1991, Section 1105, as amended by Section 8, Chapter 286, O.S.L. 1995 (22 O.S. Supp. 1996, Section 1105), are hereby repealed.

SECTION 27. It being immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, by reason whereof this act shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and approval.

Passed the House of Representatives the 10th day of February,

1997.

Speaker of the House of
Representatives

Passed the Senate the 24th day of February, 1997.

President of the Senate

